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MANAGEMENT REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of Community First, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reporting. Community First, Inc.’s internal control
system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to the Company’s management and
board of directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial
statements. All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent
limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only
reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.

Community First, Inc.’s management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007. In making this assessment, it used the
criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COS0O) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework. In conducting Community First, Inc’s
evaluation of the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting, the Company has
. excluded the operations of First National Bank of Centerville (FNB), which Community First,
Inc. acquired October 26, 2007. At the acquisition date, total assets of FNB totaled $105 million.
Further information concerning the acquisition of FNB appears in Note 18, Business
Combinations, to the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements.

Based on our assessment we believe that, as of December 31, 2007, the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria. Community First, Inc.’s
independent registered public accounting firm has issued an audit report on Community First,
Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting.

March 14, 2008 Ma/ é

(Date) Marc leely,
resident and Chief Execunv Officer
March 14, 2008 A 9 :
(Date) ' Dianne Scroggins, oY

Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Community First, Inc.

We have audited Community First, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007,
based on criteria established in Internal Control- Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Community First, Inc.’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the

~ effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's
internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our dudit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk thata
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statemnents in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
staternents. '

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Community First, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control— Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

F-2




The Company acquired First National Bank of Centerville (FNB) on October 26, 2007. Total assets of FNB
were $105 million. Management excluded FNB’s internal control over financial reporting from its assessment
of effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007. Our audit
of internal control over financial reporting of the Company also excluded an evaluation of the internal control
over financial reporting of FNB.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheet of Community First, Inc, as of December 31 2007 and 2006 and
the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007, and our report dated March 14, 2008, expressed an

unqualified opinion thereon. .
: P , Corere MVZ o’ (Brys A

Crowe Chizek and Company LLC
Brentwood, Tennessee ‘
March 14, 2008
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Community First, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated batance sheets of Community First, Inc. (the “Company”) as
of December 31, 2007 and 2006 and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in
sharcholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007, These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of materiat misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Community First, Inc. at December 31, 2007 and 2006 and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), Community First, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007,
based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 14, 2008, expressed an unqualified

opinion thereon.
Crtre Ao e Copmgriney. L2 C

Crowe Chizek and Company LLC

Brentwood, Tennessee
March 14, 2008




COMMUNITY FIRST, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

2007 2006
ASSETS : .
Cash and due from banks $ 11913 $ 13,886
Federal funds sold 15,372 1,187
Cash and cash equivalents 27,285 15,073
Securities available for sale 80,933 35,211
Loans held for sale 5,710 3,981
Loans 490,608 348,573
Allowance for loan losses ’ {6,086) {4,259)
Net loans : 484,522 344,714
Restricted equity securities ' 1,090 905
Premises and equipment 17,256 10,880
Goodwill 4,622 -
Core deposit and customer relationship intangibles 2,812 -
Accrued interest receivable 3,382 2,376
Bank owned life insurance 3,848 3,698
Other assets ' 4,602 4,555
Total assets $ 636062 $ 421,393
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Deposits
Noninterest-bearing $ 52272 $ 34,001
Interest-bearing 507,031 332,765
Total deposits 559,303 366,766
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 11,000 13,000
Subordinated debentures 23,000 8,000
Other borrowed money ) 510 -
Accrued interest payable 4,040 2,176
Other liabilities 1,036 794
Total liabilities 598,889 390,736
Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 14)
Shareholders’ equity
Common stock, no par value, authorized 5,000,000 shares; 3,168,960
shares issued 2007, 3,015,540 shares issued 2006 26,695 21,989
Retained earnings _ 10,414 8,730
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 64 (62)
Total shareholders’ equity : 37,173 30,657

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 636062 § 421,393

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




COMMUNITY FIRST, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Years Ended December 31

(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Interest income
Loans, including fees
Taxable securittes
Tax exempt securities
Federal funds sold and other
- Total interest income

Interest expense
Deposits :
Federal Home Loan Bank advances and federal
funds purchased
Subordinated debentures and other
Total interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses

Net interest income after provision for loan
losses

Noninterest income
Service charges on deposit accounts
Mortgage banking activities
Net gains on sale of securities
Gain on sale of land
Other
Total noninterest income

Noninterest expenses
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy
Furniture and equipment
Data processing fees
Advertising and public relations
Other

Total noninterest expenses

Income before income taxes
Income taxes
Net income

Earnings per share

Basic
Diluted

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2007 2006 2005
$ 32,657 24,023 $ 16,189
2,004 1,307 785
235 209 175
473 250 156
35,369 25,789 17,305
18,545 12,255 6,409
1,082 673 326
979 600 271
20,606 13,528 7,006
14,763 12,261 10,299
1,259 1,018 683
13,504 11,243 9,616
1,644 1,520 1,561
1,212 666 469
19 - -
- 390 -
822 549 326
3,697 3,125 2,356
7,096 5,451 3,929
864 550 453
721 545 518
873 684 575
719 509 340
3,724 2,714 2,331
13,997 10,453 8,146
3,204 3,915 3,826
824 1,113 1,261
$ 2380 2802 $ 2565
$ 0.76 097 § 0.89
0.73 0.94 0.86
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COMMUNITY FIRST, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Years Ended December 31
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Accumulated
Other Total
Common Retained Comprehensive  Shareholders’
Shares Stock Earnings Income (Loss) Equity
Balance at January 1, 2005 2,865,848 $ 17,563 $ 3938 $ 49 3 21,452
Exercise of stock options 7,666 56 - - 56
Tax benefit arising from the exercised
stock options - 39 - - 39
Comprehensive income .
Net income - - 2,565 - 2,565
Other comprehensive income
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on
securities available for sale, net - - - (95) (95)
Total comprehensive income 2,470
Balance at December 31, 2005 2,873,514 17,658 6,503 (144) 24,017
Stock offering, net of issuance costs 125,460 3,761 - - 3,761
Exercise of stock options 16,566 - 121 - - 121
Tax benefit arising from the exercised
stock options - 142 - - 142
Stock based compensation expense
Restricted stock grants - 5 - - 5
Stock options - - 302 - - 302
Cash dividend declared ($.20 per
share) - - (575) - (575)
Comprehensive income
Net income - - 2,802 - 2,802
Other comprehensive income
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on .
securities available for sale, net - - - 82 82
Total comprehensive income 2,884
Balance at December 31, 2006 3.015,540 3 21.989 5 8730 § 62y & ___30.657

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




COMMUNITY FIRST, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Years Ended December 31

(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Balance at December 31, 2006

Stock offering, net of issuance costs

Exercise of stock options
Tax benefit arising from the exercised
stock options

Stock based compensation expense
Restricted stock grants

Stock options :
Cash dividend declared ($.22 per
share)

Comprehensive income
Net income

Other comprehensive income
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on
securities available for sale, net

Total comprehensive income

Balance at December 31, 2007

Accumulated

Other Total
Common Retained  Comprehensive  Shareholders’
Shares Stock Eamings Income {Loss) Equity
3,015,540 $ 21,989 $ 8,730 $ ®2 % 30,657
147,630 4,380 - - 4,380
5,617 61 - - 61
- 12 - - 12
173 22 - - 22
- 231 - - 231
- - (696) - {696)
- - 2,380 - 2,380
- - - 126 126
2,506
3,168,960 $ 26695 $ 10414 & 64 3 37,173




COMMUNITY FIRST, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided

by operating activities
Depreciation
Amortization
Provision for loan losses
Deferred income tax benefits
Mortgage loans originated for sale
Proceeds from sale of mortgage loans
Gain on sale of loans
Gain on sale of securities
Loss on sale of other real estate owned
Federal Home Loan Bank stock dividends
Increase in accrued interest receivable
Increase in accrued interest payable
Gain on sale of land
Compensation expense under stock based compensation
Bank owned life insurance
Tax benefit on exercise of stock options
Other, net

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Available for sale securities
Sale of securities
Purchases:
Mortgage-backed securities
Other
Maturities, prepayments, and calls:
Mortgage-backed securities
Other
Purchase of Federal Home Loan Bank stock
Purchase of bank, net of cash acquired (Note 18)
Net increase in loans
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned
Disposal of premises and equipment
Additions to premises and equipment
Purchase of life insurance policies
Net cash from investing activities

2007 2006 2005
$ 2380 $ 2802 $ 2565
800 505 481
(35) (3) 68
1,259 1,018 683
(348) (429) (204)
(82,697) (46,084) (25,007)
82,180 44,659 25,094
(1,212) (666) (469)
(19) - .
29 25 27
(14) (43) (28)
(243) (912) (523)
1,421 1,113 448
- (390) -
253 307 -
(150) (138) (60)
(12) (142) (39)
278 (337) 1,592
3,870 1,285 4,628
20,289 - -
(16,514) (5,792) -
(15,306) (15,381) (14,428)
3,473 1,061 1,245
16,980 13,001 10,500
(139) (199) (54)
(18,460) - -
(102,243) (89,704) (49,950)
81 188 319
- - 1,591
(4,932) (4,084) (1,425)
- - (3,500)
(116,771)  (100,910) (55,702)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




COMMUNITY FIRST, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

: 2007 2006 2005
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase in deposits 107,846 80,523 62,465
Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances 17,500 9,000 -
Payment on Federal Home Loan Bank advances (19,500) (4,000) -
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated debentures 15,000 - 5,000
Proceeds from other borrowed money 8,310 - -
Payments on other borrowed money (7.800) - -
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ' 4,380 3,761 -
Proceeds from stock option exercises 61 121 56
Tax benefit on exercise of stock options 12 142 39
Cash paid for dividends {696) (575) -
Net cash from financing activities 125,113 - 88,972 67,560
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 12,212 (10,653) 16,486
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 15,073 25,726 9,240
Cash and cash equivalents at end of peried $ 27285 § 15073 $___25726
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid during year for:
Interest $ 19,178 % 12415 % 6,558
Income taxes 1,130 1,470 1,388

Supplemental noncash disclosures
Transfer from loans to repossessed assets 703 61 602




COMMUNITY FIRST, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations and Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements
include Community First, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007,
Community First Bank & Trust (the “Bank”) and First National Bank of Centerville (“First
National”), together are referred to as “the Company”. Intercompany transactions and balances
are eliminated in consolidation.

The Company provides financial services through its offices in Maﬁry, Williamson, Rutherford
and Hickman counties. Its primary deposit products are checking, savings, and term certificate
accounts, and its primary lending products are residential mortgage, commercial, and
installment loans. Substantially all loans are secured by specific items of collateral including
business assets, consumer assets, and commercial and residential real estate. Commercial loans
are expected to be repaid from cash flow from operations of businesses. There are no significant
concentrations of loans to any one industry or customer. The customers’ ability to repay their
loans is dependent, however, on the real estate and general economic conditions in the area.
Other financial instruments, which potentially represent concentrations of credit risk, include
deposit accounts in other financial institutions and federal funds sold.

Use of Estimates: To prepare financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, management makes estimates and
assumptions based on available information. These estimates and assumptions affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements and the disclosures provided, and actual results
could differ. The allowance for loan losses and fair values of financial instruments are
particularly subject to change.

-

Cash Flows: Cash and cash equivalents include cash, deposits with other financial institutions
with maturities under 90 days, and federal funds sold. Net cash flows are reported for
customer loan and deposit transactions.

Securities: Debt securities are classified as available for sale when they might be sold before
maturity. Equity securities with readily determinable fair values are classified as available for
sale. Securities classified as available for sale are carried at fair value, with unrealized holding
gains and losses reported in other comprehensive income, net of tax.

Interest income includes amortization of purchase premium or discount. Premiums and
discounts on securities are amortized on the level-yield method without anticipating
prepayments, except for mortgage-backed securities where prepayments are anticipated. Gains
and losses on sales are recorded on the trade date and determined using the specific
identification method.

(Continued)




COMMUNITY FIRST, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Declines in the fair value of securities below their amortized cost that are other than temporary
are reflected as realized losses. In estimating other-than-temporary losses, management
considers the length of time and extent that fair value has been less than amortized cost, the
financial condition and near term prospects of the issuer, and the Company’s ability and intent
to hold the security for a period sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.

Loans Held for Sale: Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market
are carried at cost, which approximates market value. Loans held for sale are considered short
term with the time frame being less than 90 days from when the Company funds the loan held
for sale until the loan is purchased by a third party investor. Under normal course of business,
at the time of funding of the loan held for sale by the Company there is a commitment from a
third party investor to purchase the loan held for sale. The Company recognizes revenue upon
purchase of the loan held for sale by the third party investor with the Company receiving a
service release premium from the third party investor.

Loans: Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or
untl maturity or payoff are reported at the principal balance outstanding, net of unearned
interest and an allowance for loan losses. Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal
balance.

Interest income on loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days delinquent unless the
loan is well-secured and in process of collecion. Past due status is based on the contractual
terms of the loan. In all cases, loans are placed on nonaccrual or charged-off at an earlier date if
collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful.

All interest accrued but not received for loans placed on nonaccrual is reversed against interest
income. Interest received on such loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery
method, until qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are returned to accrual status when all the
principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are
reasonably assured.

Purchased Loans: The Company purchased a group of loans in a business combination.
Purchased loans that show evidence of credit deterioration since origination are recorded at the
allocated fair ‘value in a purchase business combination, such that there is no carryover of the
seller's allowance for loan losses. After acquisition, incurred losses are recognized by an
increase in the allowance for loan losses.

Purchased loans are accounted for individually or aggregated into pools of loans based on
common risk characteristics {e.g., credit score, loan type, and date of origination). The
Company estimates the amount and timing of expected cash flows for each purchased loan or
pool, and the expected cash flows in excess of amount paid is recorded as interest income over

(Continued)
12




COMMUNITY FIRST, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) '

the remaining life of the loan or pool (accretable yield). The excess of the loan’s or pool's
contractual principal and interest over expected cash flows is not recorded (nonaccretable
difference).

Over the life of the loan or pool, expected cash flows continue to be estimated. If the present
value of expected cash flows is less than the carrying amount, a loss is recorded. If the present
value of expected cash flows is greater than the carrying amount, it is recognized as part of
future interest income.

Allowance for Loan Loss: The allowance for loan losses is a valuation allowance for probable
incurred losses. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the
uncollectability of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the
allowance. Management estimates the allowance balance required using the nature and volume
of the portfolio, information about specific borrower situations, and estimated collateral values,
economic conditions, and other factors in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 114, Accounting by Creditors for Impairments of a loan and SFAS 5,
Accounting for Contingencies. Allocations of the allowance may be made for specific loans, but
the entire allowance is available for any loans that, in management’s judgment, should be
charged off.

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level management believes will be adequate to
absorb losses on existing loans that may become uncollectible. Provision to and adequacy of the
allowance for loan losses are based on the evaluation of the loan portfolio utilizing objective and
subjective criteria, in accordance with SFAS 114 and SFAS 5. The objective criteria primarily
include an internal grading system and specific allocations for impaired loans. The Company
utilizes a historical analysis to validate the overall adequacy of the allowance for loan losses in
accordance with SFAS 5. The subjective criteria take into consideration such factors as changes
in the nature and volume of the portfolio, overall portfolio quality, and business conditions that
may affect the borrowers” ability to pay, and other relevant factors. Changes in any of these
criteria or the availability of new information could require adjustments of the allowance for
loan losses in future periods.

Under SFAS 114, a loan is impaired when it is probable that the bank will be unable to collect all
amounts due (including both interest and principal) according to the contractual terms of the
loan agreement. Generally, a loan is impaired for purposes of SFAS 114 if it exhibits the same
level of weaknesses and probability of loss as loans (or portions of loans) classified special
mention, substandard, doubtful or loss. Commercial and commercial real estate loans are
individually evaluated for impairment. Consumer and residential real estate loans are also
individually evaluated for impairment. If a loan is impaired, a portion of the allowance is
allocated so that the loan is reported, net, at the present value of estimated future cash flows
using the loan’s existing rate, or at the fair value of collateral, net of selling costs, if repayment is
expected solely from the collateral.

{Continued)
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COMMUNITY FIRST, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Bank automatically places loans on non-accrual when they become 90 days past due,
however; when in management’s opinion the borrower may be unable to meet payments the
loan may be placed on non-accrual at that time even if not then 90 days past due. The accrual of
interest on impaired loans is discontinued when, in management’s opinion, the Company may
be unable to collect all outstanding principal and accrued interest. When interest is
discontinued, all unpaid accrued interest is reversed. Interest income is subsequently

- recognized only to the extent cash payments are received.

Foreclosed Assets/Assets Held For Resale: Real estate and personal property acquired through
or in lieu of loan foreclosure and repossession are to be resold and are initially recorded at the
lesser of current principal investment or fair market value less estimated cost to sell at the date
of foreclosure. Valuation of these assets is periodically reviewed by management with such
assets adjusted to the then fair market value net of estimated selling cost, if lower, until
disposition.

Gains and losses from the sale of foreclosed asset, and real estate are recorded in noninterest
income, and expenses used to maintain the properties are included in noninterest expense. If
the fair value declines subsequent to foreclosure, a valuation allowance is recorded through
expense.

Premises and Equipment: Land is carried at cost. Premises and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation. Buildings and related components are depreciated using the
straight-line method with useful lives ranging from 5 to 39 years. Furniture, fixtures and
equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method with useful lives ranging from 3 to 7
years.

Restricted Equity Securities: These securities consist primarily of Federal Home Loan Bank
(“FHLB") and Federal Reserve Bank (“FRB”) stock. Members of the FHLB are required to own
a certain amount of stock based on the level of borrowings and other factors, and may invest in
additional amounts. These securities are carried at cost, classified as a restricted security, and
periodically evaluated for impairment based on ultimate recovery of par value. Both cash and
stock dividends are reported as income.

Bank Owned Life Insurance: The Company has purchased life insurance policies on certain key
employees. Upon adoption of EITF 06-5, which is discussed further below, bank owned life
insurance is recorded at the amount that can be realized under the insurance contract at the
balance sheet date, which is the cash surrender value adjusted for other charges or other
amounts due that are probable at settlement. Prior to adoption of EITF 06-5, the Company
recorded owned life insurance at its cash surrender value.

{Continued)
14




COMMUNITY FIRST, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

NOTE1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

In September 2006, the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force finalized Issue No. 06-5, Accounting for
Purchases of Life Insurance - Determining the Amount That Could Be Realized in Accordance with
FASB Technical Bulletin No. 85-4 (Accounting for Purchases of Life Insurance). This Issue requires
that a policyholder consider contractual terms of a life insurance policy in determining the
amount that could be realized under the insurance contract. It also requires that if the contract
provides for a greater surrender value if all individual policies in a group are surrendered at the
same time, that the surrender value be determined based on the assumption that policies will be
surrendered on an individual basis. Lastly, the Issue requires disclosure when there are
contractual restrictions on the Company’s ability to surrender a policy. The adoption of EITF
06-5 on January 1, 2007 had no impact on the Company’s financial condition or results of
operations. ,
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets: Goodwill results from a business acquisition and
represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of acquired tangible assets and
liabilities and identifiable intangible assets. Goodwill is assessed at least annually for
impairment and any such impairment will be recognized in the period identified.

Other intangible assets consist of core deposit and acquired customer relationship intangible
assets arising from a bank acquisition. They are initially measured at fair value and then are
amortized on an accelerated method over their estimated useful lives, which was determined to
be 15 years.

Long-Term Assets: Premises and equipment, core deposit intangible, and other long-term
assets are reviewed for impairment when events indicate their carrying amount may not be
recoverable from future undiscounted cash flows. If impaired, the assets are recorded at fair
value.

Loan Commitments and Related Financial Instruments: Financial instruments include off-
balance sheet credit instruments, such as commitments to make loans and standby letters of
credit, issued to meet customer financing needs. The face amount for these items represents the
exposure to loss, before considering customer collateral or ability to repay. Such financial
instruments are recorded when they are funded.

Stock-Based Compensation: Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS”) No.123(R), Share-Based Payment, using the modified
prospective transition method. Accordingly, starting in 2006 the Company has recorded stock-
based employee compensation cost using the fair value method.

Prior to January 1, 2006, employee compensation expense under stock options was reported
using the intrinsic value method; therefore, no stock-based compensation cost is reflected in net
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

income for the year ended December 31, 2005, as all options granted had an exercise price equal
to or greater than the market price of the underlying common stock at date of grant.

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if expehse was
measured using the fair value recognition provisions of FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation, for the year ending December 31, 2005:

Net income as reported $ 2,565
Deduct: Stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value based
method ) 173
Pro forma net income $_2,392
Basic earnings per share _
As reported $ 089
Pro forma 0.83
Diluted earnings per share
As reported 0.86
Pro forma 0.80

Income Taxes: Income tax expense is the total of the current year income tax due or refundable
and the change in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are the
expected future tax amounts for the temporary differences between carrying amounts and tax
bases of assets and liabilities, computed using enacted tax rates. A valuation allowance, if
needed, reduces deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized.

The Company adopted FASB Interpretation 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes
(“FIN 48”), as of January 1, 2007. A tax position is recognized as a benefit only if it is "more
likely than not" that the tax position would be sustained in a tax examination, with a tax
examination being presumed to occur. The amount recognized is the largest amount of tax
benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized on examination. For tax positions not
meeting the “more likely than not" test, no tax benefit is recorded. The Company’s adoption of
FIN 48 had no affect on the Company’s financial statements.

The Company recognizes interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax
expense.

Retirement Plans: Supplemental employee retirement plan (“SERP”) expense is the net of
service and interest cost, return on plan assets and amortization of gains and losses not
immediately recognized. Employee 401(k) and profit sharing plan expense is the amount of
matching contributions. The Company will match 100% of the first 4% the employee
contributes to their 401(k) annually.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Earnings per Common Share: Basic earnings per common share is net income divided by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings
per comunon share includes the dilutive effect of additional potential common shares issuable
under stock options and unvested stock awards. Earnings and dividends per share are restated
for all stock splits and stock dividends through the date of issue of the financial statements.

Comprehensive Income:  Comprehensive income consists of net income and other
comprehensive income. Other comprehensive income includes unrealized gains and losses on
securities available for sale, which are also recognized as a separate component of equity.

Loss Contingencies: Loss contingencies, including claims and legal actions arising in the
ordinary course of business, are recorded as liabilities when the likelihood of loss is probable
and an amount or range of loss can be reasonably estimated. Management does not believe
there now are such matters that will have a material effect on the financial statements.

Restrictions on Cash: Cash on hand or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank was required
to meet regulatory reserve and clearing requirements. These balances do not earn interest.

Stock Dividends: A two-for one stock split to shareholders in the form of a 100% stock dividend
was distributed in May 2005, resulting in the issuance of 1,433,424 shares of common stock.
Share data has been adjusted to reflect the stock dividend.

Dividend Restriction: Banking regulations require maintaining certain capital levels and may
limit the dividends pa1d by the Bank and First National to the Company or by the Company to
shareholders

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: Fair value of financial instruments is estimated using
relevant market information and other assumptions, as more fully disclosed in a separate note.
Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment regarding
interest rates, credit risk, prepayments, and other factors, especially in the absence of broad
markets for particular items. Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could
significantly affect the estimates.

Operating Segments: While the chief decision-makers monitor the revenue streams of the
various products and services, operations are managed and financial performance is evaluated
on a Company-wide basis. Operating segments are aggregated into one as operating results for
all segments are similar. Accordingly, all of the financial service operations are considered by
management to be aggregated in one reportable operating segment.

Reclassifications: Some items in the prior year financial statements were reclassified to conform
to the current presentation.

{Continued)
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)-

Adoption of New Accounting Standards: In February 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) issued Statement No. 155, Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments
(SFAS No.155), which permits fair value remeasurement for hybrid financial instruments that
contain an embedded derivative that otherwise would require bifurcation. Additionally, SFAS
No. 155 clarifies the accounting guidance for beneficial interests in securitizations. Under SFAS
No. 155, all beneficial interests in a securitization will require an assessment in accordance with
SFAS No. 133 to determine if an embedded derivative exists within the instrument. In January
2007, the FASB issued Derivatives Implementation Group Issue B40, Application of Paragraph
13(b) to Securitized Interests in Prepayable Financial Assets (DIG Issue B40). DIG Issue B40
provides an exemption from the embedded derivative test of paragraph 13(b) of SFAS No. 133
for instruments that would otherwise require bifurcation if the test is met solely because of a
prepayment feature included with the securitized interest and prepayment is not controlled by
the security holder. SFAS No. 155 and DIG Issue B40 are effective for fiscal years beginning
after September 15, 2006. The adoption of SFAS No. 155 and DIG Issue B40 did not have a
material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Effect of Newly Issued But Not Yet Effective Accounting Standards: In September 2006, the
FASB issued Statement No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. This statement defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. This statement establishes a fair value hierarchy about the assumptions used to
measure fair value and clarifies assumptions about risk and the effect of a restriction on the sale
or use of an asset. The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007.
In February 2008, the FASB issued Staff Position (FSP) 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Statement No.
157. This FSP, delays the effective date of FAS 157 for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial
liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value on a recurring basis (at least
annually) to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008, and interim periods within those
fiscal years. The Company does not expect the impact of this standard to be material.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities. The standard provides companies with an option to report selected
financial assets and liabilities at fair value and establishes presentation and disclosure
requirements designed to facilitate comparisons between companies that choose different
measurement attributes for similar types of assets and labilities. The new standard is effective
for the Company on January 1, 2008. The Company did not elect the fair value option for any
financial assets or financial liabilities.

(Continued)
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NOTE1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

In September 2006, the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force finalized Issue No. 06-4, Accounting for
Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance
Arrangements. This issue requires that a liability be recorded during the service period when a
split-dollar life insurance agreement continues after participants’ employment or retirement.
The required accrued liability will be based on either the post-employment benefit cost for the
continuing. life insurance or based on the future death benefit depending on the contractual
terms of the underlying agreement. This Issue is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2007. The Company does not expect the impact of this standard to be material.

On November 5, 2007, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 109, Written Loan
Commitments Recorded at Fair Value through Earnings (“SAB 109”). Previously, SAB 105,
Application of Accounting Principles to Loan Commitments, stated that in measuring the fair value
of a derivative loan commitment, a company should not incorporate the expected net future
cash flows related to the associated servicing of the loan. SAB 109 supersedes SAB 105 and
indicates that the expected net future cash flows related to the associated servicing of the loan
should be included in measuring fair value for all written loan commitments that are accounted
for at fair value through earnings. SAB 105 also indicated that internally-developed intangible
assets should not be recorded as part of the fair value of a derivative loan commitment, and
SAB 109 retains that view. SAB 109 is effective for derivative loan comunitments issued or
modified in fiscal quarters beginning after December 15, 2007. The Company does not expect
the impact of this standard to be material.

NOTE 2 - SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE

The fair value of securities available for sale and the related gross unrealized gains and losses
recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for 2007 and 2006 were as
follows:

Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Unrealized
Value Gains Losses
2007
U.S. Government sponsored entities $ 15919 § 52§ -
Mortgage-backed securities : 54,119 178 (163)
State and municipals 6,233 49 (26)
Other debt securities 4,662 14 -
Total $ 80933 $ 293 189
2006
U.S. Government sponsored entities $ 19776 % 14 % (45)
Mortgage-backed securities , 7,857 17 (76)
State and municipals 6,092 47 (44)
Other debt securities 1,486 4 {19)
Total $ 35211 § 82 §  (184)

{Continued)
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NOTE 2 - SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE (Continued)

Sales of available for sale securities were as follows:

2007
Proceeds $ 20,289
Gross gains 28
Gross losses 9

There were no gains in 2006, and 2005 recognized from sale of securities available for sale. The
tax provision related to the net realized gains for 2007 was $7.

The fair value of debt securities at December 31, 2007, by contractual maturity is set forth below.
Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the
right to call or prepay obligations. Securities not due at a single maturity date, prunanly
mortgage-backed securities, are shown separately.

Fair Value

Due in one year or less $ 3,503
Due after one through five years 11,416
Due after five through ten years 5,975
Due after ten years 5,920
Mortgage-backed securities 54,119
Total $ 80933

Securities carried at $38,890 and $21,170 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, were pledged to secure
deposits and for other purposes as required or permitted by law.

At year end 2007 and 2006, the Company did not hold securities of any one issuer, other than
the U.S. Government sponsored entities, in an amount greater than 10% of shareholders’ equity.

The following table shows securities with unrealized losses and their fair value, aggregated by
investment category and length of time that individual securities had been in a continuous
unrealized loss position as of December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
2007 :
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Description of Securities Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss

Mortgage-backed securites $ 11,510 § (123) $ 4323 § (40) $15,833 $ (163)
State and municipals - - 2,244 (26) 2,244 (26)

Total temporarily impaired $ 11,510 $ (123) $ 6,567 % (66) $18,077 $ (189)

{Continued)
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NOTE 2 - SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE (Continued)

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
2006
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Description of Securities Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss

US Governiment sponsored

entities $2,392 $ (2) $12938 $ (43) $15330 $ (45)
Mortgage-backed securities 2,990 - 3,436 (76) 6,426 (76)
State and municipals 494 (8) 2,592 (36) 3,086 (44}
Other debt securities - - 981 (19) 981 (19

Total temporarily impaired  $5,876 $ (10) $19947 $ (174) $25.823 $ (184)

Unrealized losses on securities have not been recognized into income because the securities are
of high credit quality, management has the intent and ability to hold until maturity or until
recovery, and the decline in fair value is largely due to increases in market interest rates. The
| fair value is expected to recover as the securities approach their maturity date and/or market
. rates decline.

. Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment on at least a semi-

' annual basis and the investment committee makes such an evaluation on an annual basis.
These evaluations are made more frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such
evaluation. Consideration is given to the length of time and the extent to which the fair value
has been less than cost, the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and the
intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time
sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. In analyzing an issuer’s financial
condition, the Company may consider whether the securities are issued by the federal
government Or its agencies, whether downgrades by bond rating agencies have occurred, and
the results of reviews of the issuer’s financial condition.

(Continued)
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NOTE 3 - LOANS

A summary of loans outstanding by category at December 31, 2007 and 2006, follows:

Real estate

Construction

1-4 family residential

Commercial

Other
Commercial, financial and agricultural
Consumer

Other

Changes in the allowance for loan losses were as follows:

2007 2006

$140,905 §$ 93,704

151,478 96,309
116,327 90,147
4,567 3,009
50,240 46,942
14,969, 11,560
12122 7,302

490,608 348,973

2007 2006 2005
Balance at beginning of year $ 4259 $ 3268 $ 2740
Increase due to acquisition of First National 730 - -
Provision for loan losses 1,259 1,018 683
Loans charged off (212) (50) (233)
Recoveries 50 23 78
Balance of end of year $ 608 $ 4259 $ 3,268
Impaired loans were as follows:
: 2007 2006 2005
Year-end loans with no allocated allowance for loan losses $ 1,439 $ - 5 -
Year-end loans with allocated allowance for loan losses 2,506 1,416 117
Total $ 3945 $ 1416 & 117
Amount of the allowance for loan losses allocated $ 599 $ 149 % 36
2007 2006 2005
Average of impaired loans during the year $ 1,736 $ 361 $ 176
Interest income recognized during impairment 145 12 3
Cash-basis interest income recognized 149 12 3
(Continued)
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NOTE 3 - LOANS (Continued)

‘Nonperforming loans were as follows:

2007 2006
Loans past due over 90 days still on accrual $ - $ -
Nonaccrual loans 2,764 1,059

Nonperforming loans includes both smaller balance homogeneous loans that are collectively
evaluated for impairment and individually classified impaired loans.

As a result of the First National acquisition in 2007, the Company has acquired loans, for which
there was, at acquisition, evidence of deterioration of credit quality since origination and it was
probable, at acquisition, that all contractually required payments would not be collected. A
summary of these loans is as follows: '

Contractually
Required Payments  Basis in Acquired
at Acquisition Loans at Acquisition

Real Estate $ 119 $ 37
Consumer 74 33
Outstanding balance at acquisition . 193 70

Carrying amount, net of allowance of $98 at
December 31, 2007 . $ 37

At the acquisition date, the company could not reasonably estimate the cash flows expected to
be collected. Therefore, an accretable yield has not been established and income is not
recognized on these loans except to the extent that cash collected exceeds the carrying value.
During 2007, the Company collected cash in excess of the carrying value in the amount of $1,
and this amount was recognized as interest income.

NOTE 4 - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

The following is a summary of premises and equipment as of December 31, 2007 and 2006:

2007 2006
Land $ 2743 § 2617
Buildings and improvements 11,725 5,861
Furniture and equipment 5,800 4,147
Construction in process 81 619
20,349 13,244
Less: Allowance for depreciation - (3,093) (2,364)

' $ 17,256 $ 10.880

{Continued)
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NOTE 4 - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Depreciation expense for the years ended 2007, 2006, and 2005 was $800, $505, and $481,
respectively.

The Bank purchased 6.45 acres of land totaling $2,759 in Williamson County in 2004. The Bank
built a branch on 1.89 acres of the land on Carothers Parkway and sold the remaining 4.56 acres
of the property in 2005. The $390 gain related to the sale of the property was deferred in 2005
due to the Bank’s financing of the loan for this property. During the second quarter of 2006 the
Bank subsequently sold this loan to another financial institution and recognized the $390 gain
into noninterest income.

The Bank leases certain branch properties and equipment under operating leases. Rent expense
for 2007, 2006, and 2005 was $288, $162, and $126, respectively. Rent commitments under
noncancelable operating leases including renewal options were as follows:

2008 $ 222
2009 158
2010 150
2011 129
2012 102
Thereafter 1,470

2,231

NOTE 5- GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill

The change in balance for goodwill during the year is as follows:

2007
Beginning of year $ -
Acquired goodwill 4,622
End of year , 4,622
(Continued)
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NOTE 5- GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Acquired Intangible Assets

Acquired intangible assets resulting from the Company’s acquisition of First National were as
follows at year end:
2007
Gross

Carrying  Accumulated

Amount  Amortization
Amortized intangible assets:

Core deposit and customer relationship intangibles $ 2812 % -

There was no aggregate amortization expense during 2007.

Estimated amortization expense for each of the next five years is as follows:

2008 , $ 375
2009 325
2010 : 282
2011 ) 244
2012 212

NOTE 6 - DEPOSITS

Deposits at December 31, 2007 and 2006, are summarized as follows:

2007 2006
Noninterest-bearing demand accounts $ 52272 $ 34,001
Interest-bearing demand accounts 81,637 46,530
Savings accounts 21,065 8,921
Time deposits greater than $100,000 145,735 114,480
Other time deposits 258,594 162,834

$559,303 $ 366,766

At December 31, 2007 scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows:

2008 $ 380,431
2009 ‘ 20,679
2010 2,337
2011 ' 325
2012 ) 557
$404.329

(Continued)
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NOTE 6 - DEPOSITS (Continued)

Included in other time deposits above are brokered time deposits of $23,413 at December 31,
2007, with a weighted rate of 5.06% and $19,601 with a weighted rate of 4.95% at December 31,
2006. These deposits represent funds which the Bank obtained, directly, or indirectly, through a
deposit broker. A deposit broker places deposits from third parties with insured depository
institutions or places deposits with an institution for the purpose of selling interest in those
deposit to third parties. As of December 31, 2007 the Bank has $22,324 of brokered deposits that
are scheduled to mature in 2008 and $1,089 scheduled to mature in 2009.

In addition, the Bank has $114,516 in national market deposits which are purchased by
customers through a third-party internet site. Of these national market time deposits, $106,730
are scheduled to mature in 2008, $6,695 in 2009 and $1,091 in 2010.

NOTE 7 - OTHER BORROWINGS

In 2007, the Company obtained a secured line of credit of $9,000 to assist with funding the
Company’s acquisition of all of the outstanding capital stock of First National. The line of credit
is secured by 100% of the Bank stock owned by the Company. At year end 2007, the balance on
the line of credit was $510. The interest rate on the line of credit is based on the prime rate as
designated in the Money Rates sections of the Wall Street Journal minus 125 bps and was 6.0%
at year end 2007. The line of credit will mature in the fourth quarter of 2009.

NOTE 8 - FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES

The Bank has established a line of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB), which is
secured by a blanket pledge of 14 family residential mortgage loans, commercial real estate
loans and open end home equity loans. The extent of the line is dependent, in part on available
collateral. The arrangement is structured so that the carrying value of the loans pledged
amounts to 125% on residential 1-4 family loans, 300% on commercial real estate, and 400% of
open end home equity loans of the principal balance of the advances from the FHLB. To
participate in this program, the Bank is required to be a member of the FHLB and own stock in

the FHLB. The Bank had $1,058 of such stock at December 31, 2007, to satisfy this requirement.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, advances from the FHLB totaled $11,000 and $13,000. The fixed
interest rates on these advances range from 3.81% to 5.67% at December 31, 2007 and 3.36% to
5.67% at December 31, 2006. The weighted average rates at December 31, 2007 and 2006 were
5.28% and 4.99%. The FHLB advance maturities ranged from January 2008 to June 2009 at
December 31, 2007. Each FHLB advance is payable at its maturity, with a prepayment penalty
for all fixed rate advances. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, undrawn standby letters of credit
with the FHLB totaled $10,000." The letter of credit is used as a pledge to the State of Tennessee
Bank Collateral Pool. Qualifying loans totaling $140,880 were pledged as security under a
blanket pledge agreement with the FHLB at December 31, 2007.

(Continued)
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NOTE 8 - FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES (Continued)
Maturities of the advances from the FHLB are as follows:

2008 $ 8,000

2009 3,000
$ 11,000

NOTE 9 - SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

In 2002, the Company borrowed $3,000 of 4.75% floating rate mandatory redeemable securities
through a special purpose entity as part of a private offering. The securities mature on
December 31, 2032; however, the Company can currently repay the securities at any time
without penalty. They are presented in liabilities on the balance sheet and count as Tier 1
capital for regulatory capital purposes. Debt issuance costs of $74,000 have been capitalized
and are being amortized over the term of the securities. Principal officers, directors, and their
affiliates at year end 2007 and 2006 owned $700 of the $3,000 subordinated debentures. The
proceeds from this offering were utilized to increase the Bank’s capital by $3,000.

In 2005, the Company borrowed $5,000 of 5.33% floating rate mandatory redeemable securities
through a special purpose entity as part of a pool offering. These securities mature on
September 15, 2035, however, the maturity may be shortened to a date not earlier than
September 15, 2010. They are presented in liabilities on the balance sheet and count as Tier 1
capital for regulatory purposes. There was no debt issuance cost in obtaining the subordinated
debenture. The proceeds from the pool offering was used to increase the Bank’s capital.

In 2007, the Company borrowed $15,000 redeemable securities through a special purpose entity
as part of a pool offering. These securities mature in 2037, however, the maturity may be
shortened to a date not earlier than December 15, 2012. The interest rate on the securities is
7.96% until December 15, 2012, and thereafter the securities bear interest at a floating rate equal
to the 3-month LIBOR plus 3.0%. They are presented in liabilities on the balance sheet and
$4,390 count as Tier 1 capital and the remaining $10,610 is considered as Tier II capital for
regulatory purposes. There was no debt issuance cost in obtaining the subordinated debenture.
The proceeds were used to help fund the acquisition of First National.

NOTE 10 - OTHER BENEFIT PLANS

401(k) Plan: A 401(k) benefit plan allows employee contributions up to 15% of their
compensation, of which the Company will match 100% of the first 4% the employee contributes
to their 401(k) annually for all periods presented. Expense for 2007, 2006 and of 2005 was $172,
$89 and $64, respectively.

(Continued)
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NOTE 10 - OTHER BENEFIT PLANS (Continued)

Deferred Compensation and Supplemental Retirement Plans: Deferred compensation and
supplemental retirement plan (“SERP”) expense allocates the benefits over years of service. The
Bank approved the SERP in 2005. The SERP will provide certain Company officers with
benefits upon retirement, death, or disability in certain prescribed circumstances.  SERP
expense was $240 in 2007, $79 in 2006 and $28 in 2005, resulting in a deferred compensation
liability for the last three years of $348, $107 and $28.

|
NOTE 11 - INCOME TAXES - |
|

The components of income tax expense (benefit) are summarized as follows:

2007 2006 2005 !
’ |
Current I
Federal $ 1172 $ 1542 $ 1426
State : - - 39
Total current taxes . 1,172 1,542 1,465
Deferred -
Federal (126) (232) (181) |
State (222) {146) (23)
Total deferred taxes (348) {378) (204)
Change in valuation allowance - {51) -
Income tax expense $ 824 $ 1113 $ 1,261

A reconciliation of actual income tax expense in the financial statements to the expected tax
benefit (computed by applying the statutory Federal income tax rate of 34% to income before
income taxes) is as follows:

: 2007 2006 2005
Federal statutory rate times financial statement income $ 108 $ 1331 $ 1,301
Effect of: '
Bank owned life insurance (51} (71) (20)
Tax-exempt income (84) (48) (19)
State income taxes, net of federal income effect (147) (96) 11
Expenses not deductible for U.S. income taxes 40 35 16
Compensation expense related to SFAS 123R 70 98 -
General business credit (66) (66) -
Change in valuation allowance - (51) -
Other, net (27) (19) (28)
Income tax expense $ 824 $ 1113 §  1.261
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NOTE 11 - INCOME TAXES. (Continued)

The tax effect of each type of temporary difference that gives rise to net deferred tax assets and
liabilities is as follows:

2007 2006
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for loan losses $ 2145 $ 1,528
Net operating loss carry forward 207 167
Deferred compensation 133 41
Unrealized loss on securities ‘ - 46
Other 94 14

$ 2579 5 179%

Deferred tax liabilities:
Prepaids , $ (186 $  (150)
Depreciation (501) (348)
Federal Home Loan Bank stock (61) (56)
Core Deposit Intangible (1,077) -
Intercompany dividend (215) -
Unrealized gain on securities (40) -
Other (84) (59)
'$_(2164) $  (613)
Balance at end of year $ 415 $ 1,183

At year end 2007, the Company had net operating loss carryforward for state tax purposes of
approximately $0.8 million expiring in 2020, $1.9 million expiring in 2021, $2.2 million expiring
in 2022.

The Company currently has no unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would favorably
affect the effective income tax rate in future periods. The Company does not expect any
unrecognized tax benefits to significantly increase or decrease in the next twelve months. 1t
is the Company's policy to recognize any interest accrued related to unrecognized tax
benefits in interest expense, with any penalties recognized as operating expenses.

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to U.S. federal income tax as well as income tax
of the state of Tennessee. The Company is no longer subject to examination by taxing
authorities for tax years before 2004.

{Continued)
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NOTE 12 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Loans to principal officers, directors, and their affiliates in 2007 were as follows:

Beginning balance $ 4,732
New loans 1,119
Effect of changes in related parties (1)
Repayments (1,691)
Ending balance ' $_ 4159

Deposits from principal officers, directors, and their affiliates at year-end 2007 and 2006 were
$3,407 and $2,885, respectively. Principal officers, directors, and their affiliates at year end 2007
and 2006 owned $700 of the $3,000 subordinated debentures due December 31, 2032. At
December 31, 2007, the approved available unused lines of credit on related party loans were
$1,870. :

NOTE 13 - STOCK BASED COMPENSATION

Prior to the Company’s bank holding company reorganization, the Bank. had in place the
Community First Bank & Trust Stock Option Plan for organizers of the Bank and certain
members of management and employees. In connection with the bank holding company
reorganization, this plan was amended and replaced in its entirety by the Community First, Inc.
Stock Option Plan in October 2002. There were 342,000 shares authorized by the Stock Option
Plan in 2002. Additionally, the Community First, Inc. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan was approved at
the stockholders meeting on April 26, 2005 authorizing shares of 450,000. The plans allow for
the grant of options and other equity securities to key employees and directors. Exercise price
is the market price at the date of grant. The organizer options vested ratably over three years
and other non-qualified options vest ratably over four years. The employee options vest ratably
from two to four years and the management options vest ratably over six years. All options
expire within ten years from the date of grant. The Company has 286,795 authorized shares
available for grant as of December 31, 2007. The Company recognized $231 as compensation
expense resulting from stock options and $22 as compensation expense resulting from restricted
stock awards in 2007. In 2006, the Company recognized $302 as compensation expense
resulting from stock options and $5 as compensation expense resulting from restricted stock.
The total income tax benefit from non-qualified stock options was $12 in 2007, $142 in 2006 and
$39 in 2005 .

The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant using a closed form option
valuation (Black-Scholes) model that uses the assumptions noted in the table below. Expected
volatilities are based on historical volatilities of the Company’s common stock. The expected
term of options granted is based on historical data and represents the period of time that
options granted are expected to be outstanding, which takes into account that the options are
not transferable. The risk-free interest rate for the expected term of the option is based on the
U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the grant.
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NOTE 13 - STOCK BASED COMPENSATION (Continued)

The fair value of options granted was determined using the following weighted average
assumptions at grant date.

2007 2006 2005
Risk-free interest rate 5.04% 5.07% 4.46%
Expected option life 7 years 7 years 7 years
Expected stock price volatility 14.00% 16.06% 18.66%
Dividend yield 0.74% 1.00% 0.00%

A summary of option activity under the Company’s stock option incentive plans for 2007 is
presented in the following table:

Weighted
Average
. Weighted Remaining
Average Contractual Aggregate
Exercise - Term in Intrinsic

Shares Price/Share Years Value
Options outstanding January 1, 2007 246,644 $ 14.79
Granted 30,750 30.00
Options exercised (5,617) 10.86
Forfeited or expired (13,900) 2473
Options outstanding December 31, 2007 257.877 $ 16.15 4.86 $ 357
Vested or expected to vest 257,877 _ $ 16.15 4.86 $ 3571
Exercisable at December 31, 2007 194,128 11.84 3.56 $ 3525
Information related to the stock option incentive plans during each year is as follows:

(% amount in thousands except weighted average fair value of options granted)
2007 2006 2005

Intrinsic value of options exercised $ 108 $ 370 $ 128
Cash received from option exercises 61 121 56
Tax benefit realized from option exercises 12 142 39
Weighted average fair value of options granted 8.46 8.46 8.06

As of December 31, 2007, there was $451 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to
nonvested stock options granted under the Plans. The cost is expected to be recognized over a
weighted average period of 2.5 years.
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NOTE 13 - STOCK BASED COMPENSATION (Continued)

Restricted stock is issued to certain officers on a discretionary basis. Compensation expense is
recognized over the vesting period of the awards based on the fair value of the stock at issue
date. The fair value of the stock was determined using the market price on the day of issuance.
Restricted stock vests over a 2-3 year period. Vesting occurs ratably on the anniversary day of
the issuance.

The following table is a summary of changes in the Company’s nonvested shares from the
issuance of restricted stock.

Weighted Average

Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value
Nonvested at January 1, 2007 _ 346 $ 28.00
Granted 2,297 30.00
Vested (173) 28.00
Forfeited - -
Nonvested at December 31, 2007 ' 2470 $ 2986

In first quarter of 2006, 346 shares of restricted stock were awarded at the market price of $28.00
per share. In first quarter of 2007, 2,297 shares of restricted stock were awarded at the market
price of $30.00 per share. Unrecognized compensation cost related to these awards, as of
December 31, 2007 was $52. The unrecognized compensation cost is expected to be recognized
over a weighted-average period of 2.16 years. Total fair value of shares vested during the year
ended December 31, 2007 was $5. :

NOTE 14- LOAN COMMITMENTS AND OTHER RELATED ACTIVITIES

Some financial instruments, such as loan commitments, credit lines, letters of credit, and
overdraft protection, are issued to meet customer financing needs. These are agreements to
provide credit or to support the credit of others, as long as conditions established in the contract
are met, and usually have expiration dates. Commitments may expire without being used. Off-
balance-sheet risk to credit loss exists up to the face amount of these instruments, although
material losses are not anticipated. The same credit policies are used to make such
commitments as are used for loans, including obtaining collateral at exercise of the
commitment.
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NOTE 14- LOAN COMMITMENTS AND OTHER RELATED ACTIVITIES (Continued)

The contractual amount of financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk was as follows at
year end 2007 and 2006:

2007 2006
Fixed Variable Fixed Variable
Rate - Rate Rate Rate
Unused lines of credit $ 3,084 % 71,946 % 4,505 $ 58,858
Letters of credit - 4,409 - 4,160
Commitments to make loans - 7,990 - 6,200

These commitments are generally made for periods of one year or less. The fixed rate unused
lines of credit have interest rates ranging from 3.35% to 12.75% and maturities ranging from 1 to
20 years.

NOTE 15 - REGULATORY MATTERS

Banks and bank holding companies are subject to regulatory capital requirements administered
by federal banking agencies. Capital adequacy guidelines and, additionally for banks, prompt
- corrective action regulations, involve quantitative measures of assets, liabilities, and certain
off-balance-sheet items calculated under regulatory accounting practices. Capital amounts and
classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by regulators. Failure to meet capital
requirements can initiate regulatory action. Management believes as of December 31, 2007, the
Company, the Bank and First National met all capital adequacy requirements to which they
were subject. :

Prompt corrective action regulations provide five classifications: well capitalized, adequately
capitalized, undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized, and critically undercapitalized,
although these terms are not used to represent overall financial condition. If adequately
capitalized, regulatory approval is required to accept brokered deposits. If undercapitalized,
capital distributions are limited, as is asset growth and expansion, and capital restoration plans
are required. At year end 2007 and 2006, the most recent regulatory notifications categorized
the Bank and First National as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt
" corrective action. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management
believes have changed the institutions’ category.
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NOTE 15 - REGULATORY MATTERS (Continued})

The Company’s and its subsidiary banks’ capital amourits and ratios at December 31, 2007 and
2006, were as follows:

To Be Well
Capitalized Under
For Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
2007 Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
Total Capital to risk weighted assets
Community First Bank & Trust $ 48800 1007% $ 38,750 800% § 48438 10.00%
First National Bank of Centerville 8,652 17.61% 3,930 8.00% 4912 10.00%
Consolidated 58,676  1097% 42,773 8.00% N/A N/A
Tier 1 to risk weighted assets
Community First Bank & Trust $ 43313 89%% % 19375 400% $ 29,063 6.00%
First National Bank of Centerville 8,037 16.36% 1,965 4.00% 2,947 6.00%
Consolidated 42,064 7.87% 21,387 4.00% N/A N/A
Tier 1 to average assets
Community First Bank & Trust $ 43413 835% $ 20792 4.00% $ 25990 5.00%
First National Bank of Centerville 8,037 8.27% 3,889 4.00% 4,861 5.00%
Consolidated 42,064 6.76% 24,839 4.00% N/A N/A
2006
Total Capital to risk weighted assets
Community First Bank & Trust $ 41,635 1091% $ 30526 8.00% $ 38158 10.00%
Consolidated : 42,978 11.25% 30,560 8.00% N/A N/A
Tier 1 to risk weighted assets
Community First Bank & Trust $ 37,376 980% % 15,263 4.00% $ 22,895 6.00%
Consolidated 38,719 10.14% 15,280 4.00% N/A N/A
Tier 1 to average assets
Community First Bank & Trust $ 37376 916% $ 16320 4.00% $ 20400 5.00%
Consolidated 38,719 9.45% 16,384 4.00% N/A N/A

The Company’s principal source of funds for dividend payments is dividends received from its
subsidiary banks. Banking regulations limit the amount of dividends that may be paid without
prior approval of regulatory agencies. Under these regulations, the amount of dividends that
may be paid in any calendar year is limited to the current year’s net profits, combined with the
retained net profits of the preceding two years, subject to the capital requirements described
above. During 2008, the subsidiary banks could, without prior approval, declare dividends of
approximately $5,984 plus any 2008 net profits retained to the date of the dividend declaration.
However, if this amount was paid the Bank could drop below “well capitalized” under prompt
corrective action provisions.

(Continued)
34




COMMUNITY FIRST, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

NOTE 16 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Carrying amount is the estimated fair value for cash and cash equivalents, accrued interest
receivable and payable, demand deposits, short-term debt, and variable rate.loans or deposits
that reprice frequently and fully. Security fair values are based on market prices or dealer
quotes, and if no such information is available, on the rate and term of the security and
information about the issuer. Restricted equity securities do not have readily determinable fair
values. For fixed rate loans or deposits and for variable rate loans or deposits with infrequent
repricing or repricing limits, fair value is based on discounted cash flows using current market
rates applied to the estimated life and credit risk. Fair values for impaired loans are estimated
using discounted cash flow analysis or underlying collateral values. Fair value of loans held for
sale is based on market quotes. Fair value of debt is based on current rates for similar financing.
The fair value of off-balance-sheet items is not considered material.

Carrying amount and estimated fair values of significant financial instruments at year end 2007
and 2006 were as follows:

2007 2006
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Financial assets
Securities available for sale $ 80933 % 80933 $ 35211 $ 35211
Loans held for sale 5,710 5,710 3,981 3,981
Loans, net of allowance 484 522 485,906 344,714 345,259
Bank owned life insurance 3,848 3,848 3,698 3,698
Financial liabilities
Deposits with defined maturities $ 404,329 $ 407249 $ 277314 $ 276,580
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 11,000 11,131 13,000 12,956

Subordinated debentures 23,000 23,000 8,000 8,000
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NOTE 17 - LEASE REVENUE

The Bank built a branch at Carothers Parkway, located in Franklin, Tennessee that was
completed in 2006 at cost of $2,370. The Bank’s principal leasing activities consist of 1,650
square feet of office space on the second floor of the Carothers Parkway Branch under an
operating lease. The lessee rents approximately 8% of the branch. The lease term is for five
years beginning October, 2007 with a renewal term of 36 months upon written notice of 120
days prior to the expiration of the original term. Lessee has five such renewal options. The five
year lease with the Bank produces $175 in revenue, of which, $7 was recognized in 2007.

Approximate minimum rental for the noncancelable lease as of December 31, 2007 was:

2008 $ 33
2009 . 34
2010 35
2011 36
2012 : 30

$ 168

NOTE 18 - BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

On October 26, 2007, the Company acquired 100% of the outstanding shares of The First
National Bank of Centerville. Operating results of First National Bank of Centerville are
included in the consolidated financial statements since the date of the acquisition. On fanuary
31, 2008, First National was merged with and into Community First Bank & Trust, with
Community First Bank & Trust surviving. As a result of this acquisition, the Company expects
to further solidify its market share in the Hickman county market, expand its customer base to
enhance deposit fee income, provide an opportunity to market additional products and services
to new customers, and reduce operating costs through economies of scale.

The aggregate purchase price was $22,800 in cash. The purchase price resulted in
approximately $4,622 in goodwill, and $2,812 in core deposit and customer relationship
intangible. The intangible assets will be amortized over 15 years, using an accelerated method.
Goodwill will not be amortized but instead evaluated periodically for impairment.
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NOTE 18 - BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of assets acquired and liabilities. The
Company is in the process of finalizing the valuations and expects an immaterial adjustment to
the purchase price allocation.

Securities available for sale $ 54,385
Loans, net 39,527
Premises and equipment 2,244
Goodwill : 4,622
Core deposit and customer relationship intangibles 2,812
Other assets 1,178
Total assets acquired 104,768
Deposits (84,691)
Other liabilities (1,617)
Total liabilities assumed (86,308) -
Purchase price net of cash acquired of $4,340 $ 18,460

The following table presents pro forma information as if the acquisition had occurred at the
beginning of 2007 and 2006. The pro forma information includes adjustments for interest
income on loans and securities acquired, amortization of intangibles arising from the
transaction, depreciation expense on property acquired, interest expense on deposits acquired,
and the related income tax effects. The pro forma financial information is not necessarily
indicative of the results of operations as they would have been had the transactions been
effected on the assumed dates. '

(Unaudited)
2007 2006
Net interest income $ 17453 $ 14,578
Net income $ 3161 $ 3293
Basic earnings per share $ i.OU $ 115
Diluted earnings per share $ 097 § 111
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NOTE 19 - PARENT COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Condensed financial information of Community First, Inc. follows:

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET
December 31

2007 2006
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1449 $ 1183
Investment in banking subsidiaries 59,659 37,562
Other assets 529 281
Total assets $ 61637 $._39.026
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Subordinated debentures $ 23,000 $ 8000
Other liabilities 1,464 369
Total liabilities 24,464 8,369
Shareholders’ equity 37,173 30,657
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 61,637 $ 39026
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended December 31
2007 2006 2005
Interest income $ 92 $ 18 § 8
Dividends from subsidiaries - 875 100
Total income 90 893 108
Interest expense 979 600 270
Other expense 610 510 257
Total expenses 1,589 1,110 527
Losses before income tax and undistributed
subsidiaries income (1,499) (217) (419)
Income tax benefit 495 419 151
Equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries 3,384 2,600 2,833
Net income $ 2380 $§ 2802 § 2565
(Continued)
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NOTE 19 - PARENT COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
{Continued)

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31
2007 2006 2005

Cash flows from operating activities
~ Net income $ 2380 $ 2802 $§ 2565
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
from operating activities:

Equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries (3,384) (2,600) (2,833)
Compensation expense under stock based
compensation 253 307 -
Tax benefit on exercise of stock options (12) (142) (39)
Change in other, net _(115) (24) (35)
Net cash from operating activities (878) 343 (342)
Cash flows from investing activities
Investments in and advances to bank subsidiaries (18,123) (3,762) (4,500)
Net cash from investing activities (18,123) (3.762) (4,500)
Cash flows from financing activities '
Proceeds from issuance of stock 4,380 3,761 -
Proceeds from stock option exercises 61 121 56
Tax benefit on exercise of stock options 12 142 39
Cash paid for dividends (696) (575) -
Proceeds other borrowed money 8,310 - -
Repayment other borrowed money (7.,800) - -
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated
debentures 15,000 - 5,000
Net cash from financing activities 19,267 3,449 5,095
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 266 30 253
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 1,183 1,153 900
Ending cash and cash equivalents $ 1449 §__ 1183 $ __ 1,153
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NOTE 20 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

The factors used in the earnings per share computation follows:

2007 2006 2005
Basic
Net income $ 2380 5 2802 $ 2565
Weighted average common shares outstanding . 3144835 . 2881715 _2868,780
Basic earnings per common share 5 076 $ 097 $ 0.89
Diluted
Net income $ 2380 $ 2802 $ 2565
Weighted average common shares outstanding for
basic earnings per common share 3,144,835 2,881,715 2,868,780
Add: Dilutive effects of assumed exercise of stock
options 105,071 99,385 105,331
Average shares and dilutive potential common
shares 3,249,906 _2,981,100 _2974,111
Diluted earnings per common share $ 073 § 094 $ 0.86

At year end 2007 there were 69,100 antidilutive stock options.. No options were antidilutive for

2006 or 2005.

NOTE 21 -QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

2007
First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter

Fourth quarter

2006
First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter

Interest Net Interest

Income Income Net Income
$ 7,704 $ 3,314 3 512
8,299 3,620 778
8,968 3,824 743
10,398 4,005 347
$ 5,510 $ 2,905 % 621
6,131 3,073 932
6,765 3,128 645
7,383 3,155 604

Earnings Per Share

Basic Diluted

$ 0.17 $ 016
0.25 0.24
0.23 0.23
0.11 0.10

$ 022 $ 021
0.32 0.31
0.22 0.22
0.21

0.20

The increase in the 2006 second quarter net income was related to a gain on the sale of property
that was deferred in 2005 due to the Bank’s financing of the loan for this property. During the
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NOTE 21— QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED) (Continued)

second quarter of 2006 the Bank subsequently sold this loan to another financial institution and
recognized the $390 gain into noninterest income.

NOTE 22— LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Bank was a co-defendant in a suit in Maury County Circuit Court, Holloway et al. v. Evers.
Et al, filed May 31, 2005, in which the plaintiff alleged that a bank loan officer disclosed the
plaintiff’s loan history at the bank to plaintiff's two partners in a real estate development, who
subsequently forced plaintiff to sell his interest to them. Plaintiff alleged causes of action for
tortious interference with contract, breach of common law fiduciary duty, and violation of the
Financial Records Privacy Act. Plaintiff sought $5,000,000 in compensatory damages and
$5,000,000 in punitive damages, jointly and severally, from the Bank and plaintiff's two
partners. The Company believed the claim was without merit and vigorously defended the
suit. In the second quarter of 2006, the trial court granted the co-defendants summary judgment
in favor of the plaintiff's two partners which was upheld on appeal. On December 29, 2007,
plaintiffs voluntarily dismissed their claims against the Company without prejudice.

NOTE 23 - STOCK OFFERING

The Company conducted a stock offering during the fourth quarter of 2006 and the first quarter
of 2007 in order to provide the Bank with additional capital. As a result of this offering, the
Company sold 273,090 shares of common stock for total net proceeds of $8,141.
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The following selected financial data for the five years ended December 31, 2007, was derived from our
consolidated financial statements and the related notes thereto. This data should be read in conjunction
with our audited consolidated financial statements, including the related notes, and “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

INCOME STATEMENT DATA:
Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses
Noninterest income

Noninterest expense

Net income

BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Total assets

Total securities

Total loans, net

Allowance for loan losses
Total deposits

FHLB advances
Subordinated debentures
Total shareholders' equity

PER SHARE DATA:

Earnings per share - basic
Earnings per share diluted

Cash dividend declared and paid
Book value

PERFORMANCE RATIOS:
Return on average assets
Return on average equity
Net interest margin (2)

ASSET QUALITY RATIOS:
Nonperforming assets to total loans
Net loan charge offs to average loans
Allowance for loan losses to total loans

CAPITAL RATIOS:
Leverage ratio (3)

Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio
Total risk-based capital ratio

2007 {1

5 35369
20,606
14,763

1,259
3,697
13,997
2,380

$ 636,062
80,933
484,522
(6,086)
559,303
11,000
23,000
37,173

$ .76
0.73

0.22

11.72

0.47%
6.77
3.14

0.56%
0.04
1.24

6.76%
7.87
10.97

2006

$ 25789
13,528
12,261

1,018
3,125
10,453
2,802

$ 421393
35,211
344,714
(4,259)
366,766
13,000
8,000
30,657

$ 0.97
0.94

0.20

10.17

0.76%
11.14
3.52

0.30%
0.01
1.22

9.45%
10.14
11.25

2005

$ 17,305
7.006
10,299
683

2,356
8,146
2,565

$ 328,806
29,965
256,150
(3,268)
286,243
8,000
8,000
24,017

5 0.89
0.86

8.36

0.90%
11.38
3.81

0.20%
0.07
1.26

10.25%
11.59
1277

2004

$ 12593
4,272
8321

720
2,107
6,329
2,132

$ 257,342
27,867
208,087
(2,740)
223,778
8,000
3,000
21,452

5 078
0.75

749

0.90%
1137
3.64

0.45%
012
1.30

9.63%
11.33
12.52

2003

$ 10,000
3,819
6,181

614
1,936
5,451
1,264

$ 217,368
29,181
169,803
(2,249)
195,239
5,000
3,000
13,445

$ 055
0.52

582

0.67%
10.10
3.43

0.49%
0.09
1.31

7.81%
9.70
10.95

(1) Includes the operations of First National from October 27, 2007, the date the Company acquired all of the

outstanding common stock of that bank.

{2) Net interest margin is the result of net interest income for the period divided by average interest earning assets.
(3) Leverage ratio is defined as Tier 1 capital (pursuant to risk-based capital guidelines) as a percentage of adjusted .

average

(Continued)

42




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
" FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

The following is a discussion of our financial condition at December 31, 2007 and December 31,
2006, and our results of operations for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2007. The purpose of this discussion is to focus on information about our financial condition
and results of operations which is not otherwise apparent from the annual audited consolidated
financial statements. You should read the following discussion. and analysis along with our
consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere herein.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain of the statements made herein, including information incorporated herein by reference
to other documents, are “forward-looking statements” within the meaning and subject to the
protections of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Forward-looking statements include
statements with respect to our beliefs, plans, objectives, goals, expectations, anticipations,
‘assumptions, estimates, intentions, and future performance, and involve known and unknown
risks, uncertainties and other factors, which may be beyond our control, and which may cause
our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from future results,
performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. All
statements other than statements of historical fact are statements that could be forward-looking
statements. You can identify these forward-looking statements through our use of words such
as “may,” “will,” “anticipate,” “assume,” “should,” “indicate,” “would,” “believe,”
“contemplate,” “expect,” “estimate,” “continue,” “plan,” “point to,” “project,” “could,”
“intend,” “target,” and other similar words and expressions of the future. These forward-
looking statements may not be realized due to a variety of factors, including, without limitation,
those described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K and below:

” " r” i

s the effects of future economic or business conditions nationally and in our local market;

* our potential growth, including our entrance or expansion into new markets, and the
need for sufficient capital to support that growth;

* governmental monetary and fiscal policies, as well as legislative and regulatory changes,
including changes in banking, securities and tax laws and regulations;

¢ the risks of changes in interest rates on the levels, composition and costs of deposits,
loan demand, and the values of loan collateral, securities, and interest sensitive assets-

and liabilities;

s credit risks of borrowers;
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¢ the effects of competition from a wide variety of local, regional, natlonal and other
providers of financial, investment, and insurance services;

¢ the failure of assﬁmptions underlying the establishment of reserves for possible loan
losses and other estimates;

¢ changes in accounting policies, rules and practices;

e changes in technology or products that may be more difficult, or costly, or less effective,
than anticipated;

» risks associated with the successful integration of the Company and First National,
including the risk that cost savings and any revenue synergies from the acquisition may
not be realized or may take longer than anticipated and the risk of potential disruption
associated with the acquisiion with respect to customers, suppliers or employee
relationships;

 the effects of war or other conflict, acts of terrorism or other catastrophic events that may
affect general economic conditions; and

+ other circumstances, many of which may be beyond our control.

All written or oral forward-looking statements that are made by or are attributable to us are
expressly qualified in their entirety by this cautionary notice. We have no obligation and do not
undertake to update, revise or correct any of the forward-looking statements after the date of
this report, or after the respective dates on which such statements otherwise are made.

General

Community First, Inc., (the “Company”) is a registered bank holding company under the Bank
Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended, and became so upon the acquisition of all the
voting shares of Community First Bank & Trust on August 30, 2002. We were incorporated
under the laws of the State of Tennessee as a Tennessee corporation on April 9, 2002, and
conduct substantially all of our activities through and derive substantially all of our income
from our wholly-owned bank subsidiary, Community First Bank & Trust, a Tennessee chartered
bank (the “Bank”).

The Bank commenced business on May 18, 1999, as a Tennessee-chartered commercial bank
whose deposits are ‘insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation’s Bank Insurance
Fund. The Bank is regulated by the Tennessee Department of Financial Institutions and the
FDIC. The Bank’s sole subsidiary is Community First Title, Inc.; a Tennessee chartered and
regulated title insurance company. CFBT Investments, Inc., is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Community First Title, Inc., and is the parent of Community First Properties, Inc., which was
established as a Real Estate Investment Trust pursuant to Internal Revenue Service regulations.
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The Company completed its acquisition of 100% of the outstanding shares of common stock of
The First National Bank of Centerville, a national banking association (“First National”) on
October 26, 2007 pursuant to the terms of an Agreement and Plan of Reorganization and Share
Exchange, dated as of August 1, 2007, by and between the Company and First National. The
Company paid $22.8 million to acquire all of the outstanding shares of common stock of First
National which it financed through the issuance of $15 million of subordinate debentures and
$8 million distribution from First National.

First National operates under a National Bank Charter and provides full banking services. Asa
national Bank, First National is subject regulation by the Office of the comptroller of the
currency and the FDIC. On January 31, 2008, First National was merged with and into the
Bank, with the Bank continuing as the surviving entity.

The Company conducts banking activities from the main office and three branch offices in
Columbia, Tennessee, one branch office in Mount Pleasant, Tennessee, one branch office in
Franklin, Tennessee, one branch office in Murfreesboro, Tennessee, one branch office in
Centerville, Tennessee and one branch office in Lyles, Tennessee. The Company also operates
eleven automated teller machines in Maury county, two automated teller machines in
Williamson county, one automated teller machine in Rutherford county, Tennessee and two
automated teller machines in Hickman county, Tennessee.

‘The Company and its subsidiaries” principal business is to accept demand and savings deposits
from the general public and to make residential mortgage, commercial, construction, and
consumer loans. The Company’s results of operations depend primarily on net interest income,
which is the difference between the interest income from earning assets, such as loans and
investments, and the interest expense incurred on interest bearing liabilities, such as deposits,
subordinated debentures, and other borrowings. The Company also generates noninterest
income, including service charges on deposit accounts, mortgage lending income, investment
service income, bank owned life insurance (“BOLI") income, and other charges, and fees. The
Company’s noninterest expense consists primarily of employee compensation and benefits, net
occupancy and equipment expense, and other operating expenses. The Company’s results of
operations are significantly affected by its provision for loan losses and its provision for income
taxes. The following discussion provides a summary of the Company’s operations for the past
three years and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and
related notes presented elsewhere in this report.

Critical Accounting Policies

The accounting principles we follow and our methods of applying these principles conform
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and with general practices
within the banking industry. In connection with the application of those principles, we have
made judgments and estimates which, in the case of the determination of our allowance for loan
losses (ALL), have been critical to the determination of our financial position, results of
operations and cash flows.
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Allowance for Loan Losses. The allowance for loan losses is a valuation allowance for probable
incurred losses. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the
uncollectability of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the
allowance. Management estimates the allowance balance required using the nature and volume
of the portfolio, information about specific borrower situations, and estimated collateral values,
economic conditions, and other factors in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 114, Accounting by Creditors for Impairments of a loan and Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies. . Allocations of
the allowance may be made for specific loans, but the entire allowance is available for any loans
that, in management’s judgment, should be charged off.

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level that management believes will be
adequate to absorb losses on existing loans that may become uncollectible. Provision to and
adequacy of the allowance for loan losses are based on the evaluation of the loan portfolio
utilizing objective and subjective criteria, in accordance with SFAS 114 and SFAS 5. The
objective criteria primarily include an internal grading system and specific allocations for
impaired loans. The Company utilizes a historical analysis to validate the overall adequacy of
the allowance for loan losses in accordance with SFAS 5. The subjective criteria take into
consideration such factors as changes in the nature and volume of the portfolio, overall
portfolio quality, and business conditions that may affect the borrowers’ ability to pay, and
other relevant factors. Changes in any of these criteria or the availability of new information
could require adjustments of the allowance for loan losses in future periods. No portion of the
Company’s allowance for loan losses is restricted to any individual loan or group of loans, and
the entire allowance for loan losses is available to absorb losses for any and all loans.

Under SFAS 114, a loan is impairéd when it is probable that the Company will be unable to
collect all amounts due (including both interest and principal) according to the contractual
terms of the loan agreement. Generally, a loan is impaired for purposes of SFAS 114 if it exhibits
the same level of weaknesses and probability of loss as loans {or portions of loans) classified
special mention, substandard, doubtful or loss. Commercial and commercial real estate loans
are individually evaluated for impairment. Consumer and residential real estate loans are also
individually evaluated for impairment. If a loan is impaired, a portion of the allowance is
allocated so that the loan is reported, net, at the present value of estimated future cash flows
using the loan’s existing rate, or at the fair value of collateral, net of selling costs, if repayment is
expected solely from the collateral.

The Bank automatically place loans on non-accrual when they become 90 days past due,
however; when in management’s opinion the borrower may be unable to meet payments the
loan may be placed on non-accrual at that time even if not then 90 days past due. When interest
is discontinued, all unpaid accrued interest is reversed. Interest income is subsequently
recognized only to the extent cash payments are received.
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ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATION

Our income was $2,380 for the year ended December 31, 2007, a decrease of 15.1% over net
income of $2,802 for 2006. Net income in 2005 was $2,565. Pretax income declined from $3,915
in 2006 to $3,204 in 2007. Pretax income in 2005 was $3,826. The decrease in pretax income in
2007 was primarily the result of expenses associated with expanding into markets in
Williamson, Rutherford and Hickman counties and the $390 gain on sale of land recorded in
2006. Growth in interest income in 2007 and 2006 was offset in part by the increase in interest
expense and noninterest expense as a result of an increase in the Bank’s and First National's cost
of funds and as a result of the Company’s expansion efforts. In 2007, noninterest expense
increased by 33.9% while net interest income only increased 20.4% over 2006. The increase in
noninterest expense is attributable primarily to salaries and other operating expenses associated
with growth of the Company including adding additional branches in Maury county and
expanding in Williamson, Rutherford and into Hickman county through the acquisition of First
National in the fourth quarter of 2007. In 2006, noninterest expense increased by 28.3% while
net interest income increased 19.1% over 2005 due to expanding into Williamson and
Rutherford counties. Basic and diluted earnings per share were $0.76 and $0.73 for 2007
compared to $0.97 and $0.94 in 2006. Basic and diluted earnings per share in 2005 were $0.89
and $0.86.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income represents the amount by which interest earned on various earning assets
exceeds interest paid on deposits and other interest-bearing liabilities and is the most significant
component of the Company’s earnings. '

2007 compared to 2006

Net interest income before the provision for loan losses for 2007 increased $2,502, or 20.4% to
$14,763 compared to $12,261 in 2006. The increase was due primarily to continued growth in
the Company’s loan portfolio, which was funded primarily by deposit growth as well as the
Company’s acquisition of First National in the fourth quarter of 2007. The addition of First
National increased net interest income $708 in 2007.

Interest and fee income on loans in 2007 was $32,657, an increase of $8,634, or 35.9%, over 2006.
The increase in interest income is due to growth and higher average balances on loans. During
2007, approximately 49% of our loan portfolio was tied to a variable rate.

Interest income for tax exempt and taxable securities was $2,239, an increase of $723, or 47.7%,
over 2006. The increase in interest income was the result of the acquisition of First National in
October 2007 with First National's investment securities totaling $54,385 at acquisition. Interest
income also increased due to higher average balances as well as opportunities to reinvest in
higher-yield bonds provided by the short term maturity structure of the investment portfolio.
First National had $41,228 in its investment portfolio at year end which generated $380 of
interest income after the acquisition date. .
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Although net interest income increased, our net interest margin continued to experience
compression throughout 2007, declining to 3.14% from 3.52% in 2006, a decrease of 38 basis
points (“bps”). We experienced challenging competitive conditions and continued competitive
pricing pressures throughout 2007, which contributed to the decline in net interest margin. The
Bank increased costs of funding resulting from competitive deposit pricing pressure in the
Bank’'s primary market area and its reliance on brokered and national market deposits
contributed to the decline in our net interest margin in 2007. Management anticipates that the
net interest margin will improve in 2008 due to the acquisition of First National whose deposit
pricing is not as negatively impacted by competition as the Bank’s. Due to changes in market
conditions, most of the securities purchased from First National are in an unrealized gain
position. We plan to liquidate a portion of these securities in the first quarter of 2008 and
reinvest the proceeds in higher yielding loans. We believe the First National acquisition will
allow us to decrease our cost of funding through reducing dependency on brokered and
national market deposits .

The yield on interest earning assets increased 13 bps to 7.53% in 2007, compared to 7.40% in
2006. This increase was primarily due to continued growth in the loan portfolio and the growth
in the investment portfolio. Interest and fee income on loans increased $8,634 over 2006 and
$8,200 of the increase was due to the increase in the volume of loans. Loan yields increased
only 10 bps over 2006 due to the Federal Reserve Bank cutting rates in the fourth quarter of 2007
and which negatively impacted 49% of our portfolio that is variable rate loans. Investment
yields increased 52 bps to 4.85% in 2007, compared to 4.33%in 2006. The increase of $723 in
investment income was attributed primarily to the increase in volume of $557.

Interest expense totaled $20,606 for the year ended 2007, compared to $13,528 in 2006, an
increase of $7,078 or 52.3%. The increase in interest expense was due to deposit growth in
higher costing deposits, consisting primarily of time deposits, as well as an increase in higher
costing brokered deposits and national market deposits. Interest expense on time deposits over
$100,000 increased $1,787 in 2007. The increase of $1,787 was due to $188 in volume and $1,599
due to interest rates. However, an increase in interest expense of $3,848 in other time deposits
was attributed primarily to the increase in volume. The increase in interest expense was also
due to additional interest expense of $318 associated with the $15,000 of subordinated
debentures issued by us in the third quarter of 2007 to finance a portion of the purchase price
for the acquisition of First National. The cost of interest bearing deposits and other liabilities
has followed the same trend, increasing 51 bps to 4.87% in 2007, up from 4.36% in 2006.

2006 compared to 2005

Net interest income before the provision for loan losses for 2006 increased $1,962, or 19.1% to
$12,261 compared to $10,299 in 2005. The increase was due primarily to continued growth in
the Bank’s loan portfolio, which was funded primarily by deposit growth.

Interest and fee income on loans in 2006 was $24,023, an increase of $7,834, or 48.4%, over 2005.
The increase in interest income is due to the increase in interest rates and higher average
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balances on loans. During 2006, approximately 48% of our loan portfolio was tied to a variable
rate.

Interest income for tax exempt and taxable securities was $1,516, an increase of $556, or 57.9%,
over 2005. The increase in interest income was the result of higher average balances on the
investment portfolioc and opportunities to reinvest in higher-yielding bonds provided by the
short term maturity structure of the investment portfolio.

Although net interest income increased, the Company’s net interest margin continued to
compress throughout 2006, declining to 3.52% from 3.81% in 2005, a decrease of 29 bps. The
yield curve between short-term and long-term interest rates was essentially flat or inverted
throughout 2006, contributing to the decline in the Company’s net interest margin in 2006. This
situation, along with challenging competitive conditions and continued competitive pricing
pressures experienced by the Company, contributed to the decline in the Company’s net
interest margin.

The yield on interest earning assets increased 99 bps to 7.40% in 2006, compared to 6.41% in
2005. This increase was primarily due to the Bank’s continued growth in the loan portfolio and
variable rate loans that repriced as interest rates rose in the first half of 2006. Loan yields
increased 99 bps and investment yields also benefited from the rise in interest rates as yields
increased 91 bps over 2005.

Interest expense totaled $13,528 for the year ended 2006, compared to $7,006 in 2005, an increase
of $6,522 or 93.1%. The increase in interest expense was due to deposit growth in higher cost
deposits as well as an increase in higher costing brokered deposits and national market time
deposits. Interest expense on time deposits over $100,000 increased $2,313 in 2006. The
increase was due equally to higher volume and interest rates. The cost of interest bearing
deposits and other liabilities has followed the same trend, increasing 140 bps to 4.36% in 2006,
up from 2.96% in 2005.
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Average Balance Sheets, Net Interest Income)

Changes in Interest Income and Interest Expense

The following table shows the average daily balances of each principal category of our assets,
liabilities and stockholders’ equity, an analysis of net interest income for the three years ended

December 31.

Gross loans (1 and 2}
Securities available for sale (3)
Federal funds sold and other
Total interest earning assets
Cash and due from banks
Other nonearning assets
Allowance for loan losses
Total assets
Deposits:
NOW & money market
investments
Savings
Time deposits $100,000 and over
Other time deposits
Total interest-bearing deposits
Other borrowings
Total interest-bearing liabilities
Noninterest-bearing liabilities
Total liabilities
Shareholders” equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’
equity

Net interest income

Net interest margin (4) -

2007 2006 2005
Average Interest Revenue/ Average Interest Revenue/  Average Interest Revenue/
Balance Rate  Expense Balance Rate  Expense Balance Rate  Expense
$413,185 7.90% $32,657 $308,039 7.80% $24023 $ 237,643 6.81% $16,189
48,490 4.62% 2,239 35,465 4.27% 1,516 28,102 342% 960
8,079 5.85% 473 4824 518% 250 4,260 3.66% 156
469,754 7.53% 35,369 348,328 740% 25,789 270,005 641% 17,305
8,847 7,547 6,091
26,120 15,696 12,686
(4,879 (3,745) {2.991)
$499,842 $367,826 $ 285,791
$ 61,043 275% 51679 $ 47,022 224% $1,053 $ 49,096 1.53% $ 751
12,550 1.17% 147 8,872 1.33% 118 9,436  1.20% 113
98,047 6.82% 6,682 94,416 5.18% 4,895 65,003 3.97% 2582
218,509 459% 10,037 137,488 4.50% 6,189 99,988 2.96% 2,963
390,149 475% 18545 287,798 426% 12,255 223523 2.87% 6,409
32 882 6.27% 2,061 22,698 5.61% 1.273 13322 4.48% 597
423,031 487% 20,606 310,496 436% 13,528 236,845 2.96% 7,006
41,635 - - 32,173 — — 26,399 - -
464,666 342,669 263,244
35,176 25,157 22,547
99,842 67,82 $ 285,791
14,763 $12,261 10,299
3.14% 3.52% 3.81%

1 Interest income includes fees on loans of $1,267, 51,131 and $648 in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
2 Nenaccrual loans are included in average loan balances and the associated income (recognized on a cash basis) is included in

interest.

3  Amortization cost is included in the calculation of yields on securities available for sale.
4 Net interest income to average interest earning assets.
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The following table reflects how changes in the volume of interest earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities and changes in interest rates have affected our interest income, interest
expense, and net interest income for the periods indicated. Information is provided in each
category with respect to changes attributable to (1) changes in volume (changes in volume
multiplied by prior rate); (2) changes in rate (changes in rate multiplied by prior volume); and
(3) changes in rate/volume (changes in rate multiplied by change in volume). The changes
attributable to the combined impact of volume and rate have all been allocated to the changes
due to volume.

Analysis of Changes in Net Interest Income

2007 to 2006 2006 to 2005
Due to Due to Dueto Due to
Volume (1} Rate (2) Total (3) Volume (1) Rate (2) Total (3)

Interest Income:
Gross loans (4 and 5) $ 8,200 $ 434 $ 860 $ 4,79 $ 3038 $ 7.8M
Securities available for sale 557 166 723 252 304 556
Federal funds sold and other 169 54 23 21 73 94

Total interest earning assets 8,920 660 9,580 5,069 3,415 8,484
Interest Expense:
Deposits:

NOW & money market

investments $ 314 $ a2 $ 626 $ - (32 $ 33 § 3

Savings 49 (20) 29 7 12 5

Time deposits $100,000 and aver 188 1599 1,787 1,168 1,145 2313

Other time deposits 3.647 201 3,848 111 2115 3,226

Total interest-bearing deposits 4,198 2,092 6,290 2,240 3,606 5,846
Other borrowings 571 217 788 420 256 676

Total interest-bearing liabilities 4,769 2,309 7,078 2,660 3,862 6,522
Net interest income §__4151 5 _(1.649) § 2502 5240 $__(447) $ 1963

4 Interest income includes fees on loans of $1,267, $1,131 and $648 in 2007, 2006 and 2005.
5  Nonaccrual loans are included in average loan balances and the associated income (recognized on a cash basis) is included in
interest.

Noninterest Income

The Company’s noninterest income consists of service charges on deposit accounts, mortgage
banking activities, investment service income, and other noninterest income.

2007 compared to 2006

Noninterest income for the year ended December 31, 2007 increased 18.3% to $3,697 compared
to $3,125 in 2006. Service charges on deposit accounts are our largest source of noninterest
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income and increased $124, or 8.2% to $1,644 in 2007 compared to $1,520 in 2006. The largest
component of the increase in service charge income was $71 from accounts at First National.
First National was acquired by the Company in the fourth quarter of 2007. The largest
component of service charges on deposits is the Bank’s overdraft courtesy product, which
generated $1,044 for 2007 compared to $1,037 in 2006. The Bank originates and sells long-term
fixed rate mortgages and the related servicing. Mortgage loans originated and sold generated
$1,212 in gains for 2007, an increase of $546, or 82.0%, compared to $666 in 2006. Income from
mortgage loans originated and sold was impacted positively in 2007 by increasing our
mortgage origination staff from 4 in 2006 to 9 in 2007 and expanding into Williamson and
Rutherford counties. In 2005, the Bank sold property in Williamson county, Tennessee, which
created a deferred gain of $390 due to the Bank’s financing of the loan for this property. During
2006 the Bank sold this loan to another financial institution and recognized the $390 gain into
other noninterest income. First National sold investments during the fourth quarter of 2007
with a gain of $19. Other noninterest income increased $273, or 49.7%, to $822 in 2007 from $549
in 2006. The increase in other noninterest income was due primarily from the Bank offering
new investment service products, including the Appalachian Fund for Growth II, LLC, an
investment in an unconsolidated corporation which qualifies as a “Community Development
Entity” and provides loans to low-income communities and an increase in BOLI cash surrender
value. Management expects that noninterest income will continue to increase in 2008 as we
expands its mortgage origination division and investment services group and as we increases in
our size, although, if the housing market in our market areas is negatively impacted by
continued economic difficulties, we may be unable to grow our noninterest income related to
the origination of mortgage loans even if we increase our staff in these areas.

2006 compared to 2005

Noninterest income for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased 32.6% to $3,125 compared
to $2,356 in 2005. Service charges on deposit accounts decreased 2.6% to $1,520 in 2006
compared to $1,561 in 2005. The decrease in service charge income was due to higher average

balances on transaction deposit accounts, which allowed customers to avoid service charges. -

The largest component of service charges on deposits is the Bank's overdraft courtesy product,
which generated $1,037 for 2006 compared to $1,112 in 2005. The Bank originates and sells
long-term fixed rate mortgages and the related servicing. Mortgage loans originated and sold
generated $666 in gains for 2006, an increase of $197, or 42.0%, compared to $469 in 2005. 'In
2005, the Bank sold property in Williamson county, Tennessee, which created a deferred gain of
$390 due to the Bank’s financing of the loan for this property. During 2006 the Bank
subsequently sold this loan to another financial institution and recognized the $390 gain into
other noninterest income. Other noninterest income increased $223, or 68.4%, to $549 in 2006
from $326 in 2005. The increase in other noninterest income was due primarily from the Bank
offering new investment service products and an increase in BOLI cash surrender value.
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The table below shows noninterest income for each of three years ended December 31:.

2007 2006 2005
Service charges on deposit accounts $1,644 $1,520 $1,561
Mortgage banking activities 1,212 666 469
Gain on sale of securities 19 - -
Gain on sale of land - 390 -
Other:
Investment service income 312 228 22
Check printing income 22 24 - 25
Safe deposit rental 18 12 12
Credit life insurance commissions 11 14 19
BOLI income 150 138 . 60
ATM income 113 74 70
Appalachian Fund Income 123 - -
Other 73 59 118
Total noninterest income $3.697 $3.125 -$2,356

Noninterest Expense

Noninterest expense consists of salaries and employee benefits, net occupancy, furniture and
equipment, data processing, advertising and public relations, and other operating expenses.

2007 compared to 2006

Noninterest expense for the year ended December 31, 2007 increased 33.9% to $13,997 compared
with $10,453 in 2006. During 2007 and 2006, noninterest expenses have increased as we have
grown. The growth in noninterest expenses throughout 2007 and 2006 was attributable
primarily to salaries and other operating expenses associated with our growth and expansion
into Williamson and Rutherford counties and into Hickman county through our acquisition of
First National in the fourth quarter of 2007. Salaries and employee benefits increased $1,645, or
30.2% to $7,096 in 2007 compared to $5,451 in 2006. The Company’s staff increased from 96 full
time equivalent employees in 2006 to 142 in 2007, an increase of 46 employees. During the
fourth quarter of 2007, we acquired First National and 38 additional employees were added to
the staff. Also, included in salaries and employee benefits expense is stock based compensation
expense of $253 for 2007 and $307 in 2006. The remaining increase of $1,899 was associated
with operating expenses including data processing, advertising, audit and accounting, and
other expenses. Management expects that noninterest expenses will continue to increase
moderately during 2008 in conjunction with our growth in 2007 as we experience a full year of
expenses of First National, but should decline as a percentage of average assets as we continue
to experience operating efficiencies as our growth continues.

2006 compared to 2005

Noninterest expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased 28.3% to $10,453 compared
with $8,146 in 2005. During 2006 and 2005, noninterest expenses increased as the Bank has
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grown. The growth in noninterest expenses throughout 2006 and 2005 was attributable
primarily to salaries and other operating expenses associated with growth of the Bank and
expansion into Williamson and Rutherford counties. Salaries and employee benefits increased
$1,522, or 38.7% to $5,451 in 2006 compared to $3,929 in 2005. The Company’s staff increased
from 76 full time equivalent employees at December 31, 2005 to 96 at December 31, 2006. Also
included in salaries and employee benefits expense for 2006 is $307 in additional expenses due
to changes in accounting rules, which beginning on January 1, 2006 required compensation
expense related to stock options and stock awards to be expensed. The remaining increase of
$785 was associated with operating expenses including data processing, advertising, audit and
accounting, and other expenses. '

The table below shows noninterest expense for each of three years ended December 31:

2007 2006 2005
Salaries and employee benefits $7,096 $5,451 $3,929
Occupancy 864 550 453
Furniture and equipment 721 . 545 518
Data processing fees 873 684 575
Advertising and public relations 719 509 340
Other: '
Loan expense ) 139 146 152
Legal 23 - 63 119
Audit and accounting fees 345 214 290
Directors expense 174 152 97
Postage and freight 324 268 220
Operational expense 763 476 289
Regulatory and compliance 254 107 111
ATM expense 331 222 147
Other 1,371 1,066 906
Total noninterest expense $13.997 10,453 $8,146

Provisions for Loan Losses

During 2007, we recorded a provision for loan losses of $1,259, an increase of $241, or 23.7%,
over $1,018 in 2006. We reviewed the loans of First National at the time of acquisition and
determined that no additional allowance for loan losses was needed and no additional
provision was recorded during 2007, therefore; the growth in the provision was attributable to
the growth of $93,039 in loans during 2007 at the Bank. In 2006, the Bank recorded a provision '
for loan losses of $1,018 compared to $683 for 2005. ‘

Management's determination of the appropriate level of the provision for loan losses and the
adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is based, in part, on an evaluation of specific loans, as
well as the consideration of historical loss experience, which management believes is
representative of probable loan losses. Other factors considered by management include the
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composition of the loan portfolio, current and anticipated economic conditions, and the
creditworthiness of our borrowers and other related factors. The provision for loan losses has
been most directly impacted by the rapid loan growth experienced by the Bank as well as the
impact of an increase in net charge offs in 2007 discussed in more detail below.

Income Taxes

The effective income tax rates were 257%, 28.4%, and 33.0%, for 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The change in the effective tax rate for 2007 and 2006 was largely due to state net
operating losses (NOLs) created in 2006 and 2005 provided by  the Company’s real estate
investment trust and the Bank's investment in a pro]ect that qualifies for the New Markets Tax
Credits program.

Analysis of Financial Condition

Total asseﬁ at December 31, 2007 were $636,062, an increase of $214,669 or 50.9%, over 2006
year end assets of $421,393. Average assets for 2007 were $499,842, an increase of $132,016 or
35.9% over average assets for 2006.

The primary reason for the increase in total assets was the acquisition of First National. First
National's assets as of the acquisition date of October 26, 2007 totaled $104,768, net of cash and
cash equivalents. Also, continued strong loan demand, which resulted in organic loan growth of
$141,635 in gross loans throughout 2007 at the Bank, contributed to the increase in total assets.
The increase in total assets was funded primarily by the continued growth of new deposit
accounts as well as obtaining national market time deposits, brokered deposits, and public fund
deposits. Net loans of $484,522 (excluding mortgage loans held for sale) increased by $139,808
or 40.6% in 2007, from $344,714 in 2006. The increase in loans of $139,808 included $48,000 in
loans held at First National at year end 2007. As of December 31, 2007, securities totaled
$80,933, an increase of $45,722, or 129.9%, over year end 2006. The increase was primarily
attributable to $41,228 of securities at First National. At December 31, 2007, cash and cash
equivalents were $27,285, a increase of $12,212 over year end 2006. The increase in cash and
cash equivalents resulted from selling $20,289 in secuntles at First National that resulted in a
gain of $19.

Loans

Gross loans (excluding mortgage loans held for sale) grew from $348,973 at December 31, 2006,
to $490,608 at December 31, 2007, an increase of $141,635, or 40.6%. Mortgage loans held for
sale at December 31, 2007, were $5,710 compared to $3,981 at December 31, 2006, an increase of
$1,729. Most of the net loan growth in 2007 was in 1-4 family residential real estate,
construction and commercial real estate loans. Loans secured by 1-4 family real estate increased
$55,169, while commercial real estate loans increased by $26,180. Construction loans secured by
real estate increased $47,201, or 50.4% over 2006. The construction loan increase was due to
expanding into the Williamson and Rutherford county markets.
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Of the total loans of $490,608 in the portfolio as of year end 2007, $239,540, or 48.8% were
variable rate loans and $251,068 were fixed rate loans.

On December 31, 2007, the Company’s loan to deposit ratio (including mortgage loans held for
sale) was 88.7%, compared to 96.2% in 2006. The loan to asset ratio (including mortgage loans
held for sale) was 78.0% for 2007, compared to 83.8% in 2006. Management expects loan
demand to remain strong in 2008, especially in commercial and construction loans.

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006

Amount % of Total Amount % of Total

Real estate
Construction $ 140,905 28.7% $ 93,704 26.9%
1-4 family residential 151,478 30.9% 96,309 27.6%
Commercial 116,327 23.7% 90,147 25.8%
Other 4,567 0.9% 3,009 0.9%
Commercial, financial and agricultural 50,240 10.2% 46,942 13.4%
- Consumer 14,969 3.1% 11,560 3.3%
Other 12,122 25% - 7,302 2.1%
Total (1) © $490.608 100.0% $348 973 - 100.0%

(1) Does not include mortgage loans held for sale at December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006.

The following table presents various categories of loans contained in our loan portfolio for the
- periods indicated and the total amount of all loans for such period:

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 -

Real estate

Construction $140,905 $93,704  $61,530  $36,241  $23,977

1-4 family residential 151,478 96,309 79,634 67,844 52,073

Commercial 116,327 90,147 69,549 66,319 63,513

Other 4,567 3,009 894 288 486
Commercial, financial and agricultural 50,240 46,942 36,601 30,068 21,765
Consumer 14,969 11,560 10,803 9597 9,778
Other 12,122 7,302 407 - 470 460
Total loans $490,608 $348,973 259418 210,827 172,052
Allowance for possible loan losses {6,086) (4,259 {3,268) (2,740) (2,249)
Total loans (net of allowance) $484522 $344,714 $256,150 $208,087 $169.803
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The following is a presentation of an analysis of maturities of loans as of December 31, 2007:

Dueinl Dueinl Due after
Type of Loan vearor less to 5 years 5 Years Total

Commercial, financial and ag'ricull'ural $ 50,386 $96,806 $19,375 $166,567
and commercial real estate

Real estate-construction 102,330 36,385 2,190 140,905
Total $152,716 $133,191 $21,565 07,47

The following is a presentation of an analysis of sensitivities of loans to changes in interest rates
as of December 31, 2007 for the loan types mentioned above:

Loans due after 1 year with predetermined interest rates $153,927
Loans due after 1 year with floating, or adjustable, interest rates $ 829
Asset Quality

The following table presents information regarding impaired, nonaccrual, past due and
restructured loans at the dates indicated:

December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Loans considered by management as impaired:

Number 67 38 20 10 7

Amount $3,945 $1,416 $117 $905 $533
Loans accounted for on nonaccrual basis:

Number ‘ 63 27 12 10 7

Amount $2,764 $1,059 8508 $905 $533

Accruing loans (including consumer loans)

which are contractually past due 90 days

or more as to principal and interest

payments:
Number - - - - 9
Amount $ - % - 5 - $ - $307

Loans defined as "troubled debt
restructurings"
Number - - - - -

Amount $ - % - $ - $ - $ -
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As of December 31, 2007, there were $4,882 loans classified by management as doubtful or
substandard that are not on nonaccrual, which (i) represent or result from trends or
uncertainties which management reasonably expects will materially impact future operating
results, liquidity, or capital resources, or (ii} represent material credits about which
management is aware of any information which causes management to have serious doubts as
to the ability of such borrowers to comply with the loan repayment terms.

Accrual of interest is discontinued on a loan when management of the Compaﬁy determines
upon consideration of economic and business factors affecting collection efforts that collection
of interest is doubtful.

There are no other loans which are not disclosed above, but where known information about
possible credit problems of borrowers causes management to have serious doubts as to the
ability of such borrowers to comply with the present loan repayment terms.

The following table presents information regarding loans included as non accrual and the gross
income that would have recorded in the period if the loans had been current, and the amount of
interest income on those that was included in net interest income for the period end December
31.

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Nonaccrual interest $ 355 $144 $30 $ 45 $ 160
Lost interest 107 39 16 34 46

The current market condition for commercial real estate loans remains stable and will continue
to be an area of growth for the Company. Market conditions for residential development and
residential construction has seen a significant softening. In the short term, the Company
anticipates market conditions for residential development and residential construction to
remain soft and loan growth in the residential loan portfolio to be significantly slower than
historical growth levels. The Company has not experienced significant loans problems within
the residential development and residential construction loan portfolio. Management and the
Board continuously monitor the market conditions and loan portfolio within these key loan
areas.

Nonperforming loans are defined as nonaccrual loans, loans still accruing but past due 90 days
or more, and restructured loans. The following table presents information regarding
nonperforming loans at the dates indicated:

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Loans secured by realestate  $2301 $ 843 $436 $867 $762

Commercial and Industrial 194 191 34 - 57

Consumer 256 25 - 38 14

Other 13 - 38 - 7

Total $2.764 1,05 $ 508 $ 905 $.840
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Management classifies commercial and commercial real estate loans as nonaccrual loans when
principal or interest is past due 90 days or more and the loan is not adequately collateralized.
Also loans are classified as nonaccrual when they are in the process of collection, or when, in
the opinion of management, principal or interest is not likely to be paid in accordance with the
terms of the obligation. Nonaccrual loans are not reclassified as accruing until principal and
interest payments are brought current and future payments appear reasonably certain. Loans
are categorized as restructured if the original interest rate, repayment terms, or both were
restructured due to deterioration in the financial condition of the borrower. However,
restructured loans that demonstrate good performance under the restructured terms and that
yield a market rate of interest may be removed from restructured status in the year following
the restructure.
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Summary of Loan Loss Experience

An analysis of our loss experience is furnished in the following table for the periods indicated,
as well as a breakdown of the allowance for loan losses:

December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Balance at beginning of period $4,259  $3,268 $2,740 $2,249 $1,773
Increase due to acquisition of First National 730 - - - -
Charge offs:
Commercial, financial and agricultural (86) 8) (98) (66) -
Real Estate-construction - - - - -
Real Estate-1 to 4 family residential (47) - (14) ) (30)
Real Estate-commercial (2) - - - -
Real Estate-other - - - - -
Consumer and other loans (77) (42) (121) (179) (130)
(212) - (50) (233) (252) (160)
Recoveries:
Commercials, financials and agriculture 27 - - - 2
Real Estate-construction - - - - -
Real Estate-1 to 4 family residential - 1 25 6 1
Real Estate-commercial - - - - -
Real Estate-other - - - - -
Consumer and other loans 23 22 53 17 - 19
50 23 78 23 22
Net Charge offs (162) (27) (155} {229) 138
Provision for loan losses 1,259 1,018 683 720 614
Balance at end of period $6,086 $4.259 $3.268 $2,740 2,24
Ratio of net charge offs during the period to
average loans outstanding during the period 0.04% 0.01% 0.079 0.125% 0.09%
Ratio of nonperforming loans to total loans 056% 030% 0.20% 0.45% 0.49%
Ratio of impaired loans to total loans 0.80% 041% 0.05% 043% 0.31%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to total loans 1.24% 1.22% 1.26% 1.30% 1.31%
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At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the allowance was allocated as follows:

2007 2006
Percentage Percentage
of loans to of loans to
the the
allowance allowance in
in each each
Amount category Amount category
Commercial, financial and agricultural $ 59 10% $ 547 13%
Real estate-construction 1,611 27% 1,053 - 25%
Real estate-1 to 4 family residential 2,089 34% 1,266 30%
Real estate-commercial 1,342 22% 1,110 26%
Consumer and other loans 448 7% 283 6%
Total $ 6,086 100% 4,259 100%
At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the allowance was allocated as follows:
2005 2004
Percentage Percentage
of loans to of loans to
the the
allowance allowance in
in each each
Amount category Amount category
Commercial, financial and agricultural $ 458 14% $ 379 - 14%
Real estate-construction 772 24% 494 17%
Real estate-1 to 4 family residential 1,038 31% 818 30%
Real estate-commercial 871 27% 925 - 34%
Consumer and other loans ' 129 4% 124 _5%
Total $ 3,268 100% $ 2,740 100%
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At December 31, 2003, the allowance was allocated as follows:

2003
Percentage’
of loans to

the
allowance
in each
Amount category

Commercial, financial and agricultural $ 275 12%
Real estate-construction 354 16%
Real estate-1 to 4 family residential 604 ©27%
Real estate-commercial 892 39%
Consumer and other loans 124 6%
Total $ 2,249 100%

Allowance for Loan Losses

In considering the adequacy of our allowance for loan losses, management has focused on the
fact that as of December 31, 2007, 85% of outstanding loans are secured by real estate. Our
consumer loan portfolio is also well secured and, as such, does not, in rﬁanagement's opinion,
involve more than normal credit risk.

Although our loan portfolio is concentrated in Middle Tennessee, management does not believe
this geographic concentration presents an abnormally high risk. At December 31, 2007 there
were no loan concentrations that exceeded 10% of total loans other than as included in the
preceding table of types of loans. Loan concentrations are amounts loaned to a multiple
number of borrowers engaged in similar activities which would cause them to be similarly
impacted by economic or other conditions. '

Securities

At December 31, 2007, we owned $80,933 in securities, compared to $35,211 at year end 2006.
Total securities increased in 2007 by $45,722, primarily as a result of our acquisition of First
National. The unrealized gains on securities at year end 2007 were $64, net of tax. The
investment portfolio was 12.7% of total assets at December 31, 2007, and 8.4% of total assets at
December 31, 2006. All of the Company’s securities are classified as available for sale. The
Company’s investment portfolio is used to provide interest income and liquidity and for
pledging purposes to secure public fund deposits.
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The carrying value of securities at December 31 is summarized as follows:

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
Amount % of Total Amount % of Total
U.S. Government sponsored entities $ 15919 19.6% $ 19,776 56.2%
Mortgage-backed securities 54,119 66.9% 7,857 22.3%
State and municipals 6,233 7.7% 6,092 17.3%
Other debt securities ' 4,662 5.8% 1,486 4.2%
Total $ 80933 100.0% $ 35211 100.0%
December 31, 2005
Amount % of Total
U.S. Government sponsored entities $ 18,887 63.0%
Mortgage-backed securities 3,089 10.3%
State and municipals 5487 18.3%
Other debt securities 2,502 8.4%
Total $ 29965 100.0%

The following table presents the carrying value by maturity distribution of the investment
portfolio, along with weighted average yields thereon, as of December 31, 2007:

Within 1-5 5-10 Beyond
1 Year Years Years 10 Years  Total
U.S. Government sponsored entities $ 3503 $11416 $ 1,000 $ - $15919
State and municipals - - 3,965 2,268 6,233
Other debt securities - - 1,010 3,652 4,662
Total debt securities 3503 $11416 $5,975 $5920 $26,814
Weighted average yield(tax equivalent) 4.82% 4.68% 4.87% 6.54% 5.15%
Mortgage-backed securities $54,119
Weighted average yield 5.539

Premises and Equipment

In 2007, fixed assets, net of depreciation, increased $6,376. The largest component of the
increase in fixed assets consisted of $3,166 due to the completion of the Bank’s new downtown
Columbia, Tennessee branch.

Rent expense was $288 in 2007, compared to $162 in 2006. The increase was due to leasing a
new bank building in Rutherford county, a new lease on the land for the new downtown
building in Columbia, Tennessee, and the increase in the number of ATMs..
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Deposits

We rely on having a growing deposit base to fund loan and other asset growth. Total deposits
were $559,303 at December 31, 2007, compared to $366,766 at December 31, 2006. The following
table sets forth the composition of the deposits at December 31:

2007 2006
Amount % of Total Amount % of Total
Noninterest-bearing demand accounts $ 52,272 93% $ 34,001 9.3%
Interest-bearing demand accounts -~ 81,637 14.6% 46,530 12.7%
Savings accounts 21,065 3.8% 8,921 2.4%
Time deposits greater than $100,000 145,735 26.1% 114,480 31.2%
Other time deposits 258,594 46.2% _162,834 44.4%
Total $559,303 100.0%  $366,766 100.0%

The majority of the deposits continue to be in time deposits. The weighted yield for 2007 on
total time deposits was 5.2%. Time deposits (certificate of deposits and IRAs) totaled $404,329,
or 72.2% of total deposits. Time deposits less than $100,000 were $258,594 at December 31, 2007,
which is an increase of $95,760 from year end 2006. The increase in time deposits less than
$100,000 was from national market and personal time deposits. We had a promotion in 2007
that increased personal time deposits by increasing the rates we paid on these deposits.
Personal time deposits under $100,000 increased from $50,899 in 2006 to $125,314 in 2007, which
included $34,222 in personal time deposits at First National. At December 31, 2007, national
market time deposits totaled $114,516, with a weighted average rate of 5.28%. Total brokered
time deposits were $23,413 at December 31, 2007 with a weighted average rate of 5.06%. The
variable rate time deposit interest rate can change one time over the term of the deposit. Total
variable rate time deposits were $28,840 at December 31, 2007, with a weighted average rate of
5.33%. Total variable rate time deposits were $23,426 at year end 2006 with a weighted average
rate of 5.26%. At December 31, 2007, we had $401,110 in time deposits maturing within two
years, of which $23,413 were brokered deposits. Time deposits maturing within one year of
December 31, 2007 were $380,431, or 94.1% of total time deposits. If we are not able to retain
these deposits at maturity, or attract additional deposits at comparable rates, we may be
required to seek higher costing deposits to replace these deposits which could negatively
impact our net interest margin. The weighted average cost of all deposit accounts was 4.33% in
2007 compared to 3.87% in 2006. The weighted average rate on time deposits was 5.28% in
2007, compared to 4.78% in 2006. Management expects to seek short-term time deposit funding
to match variable rate loans. These efforts, if successful, are expected to reduce interest rate
risk. The Bank has introduced a free checking account product and has expanded into
Williamson and Rutherford counties to access lower cost business accounts. We also expect our

* expansion into Hickman county through the acquisition of First National to result in an increase

in lower costing deposits.
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The following tables present, for the periods indicated, the average amount of and average rate
paid on each of the following deposit categories: :

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Average Average Average

Average Rate .  Average Rate Average Rate
Amount Paid Amount Paid Amount Paid

Noninterest-bearing $ 38,112 n/a $ 29,272 n/a $ 24,927 n/a
demand deposits
Interest-bearing demand

accounts 61,043 2.75% 47,022 2.24% 49,096 1.53%
Savings deposits 12,550 1.17% 8,872 1.33% 9,436 1.20%
Time deposits 316,556 5.28% 231,904 4.78% 164,991 3.36%

The following table indicates the amount outstanding of time deposits of $100,000 or more and
other time deposits of $100,000 or more, and respective maturities as of December 31, 2007:

3 months or less $44 834
3 months-6 months 58,535
6 months-12 months 32,322
Over 12 months 10,044
Total $145,735

Contractual Obligations

The Company has the following contractual obligations as of December 31, 2007:

Less than 1-3 3-5 More than
1 year ears ears 5 years Total
Long-term debt obligations $ 8,000 $ 3,510 % - $ 23,000 $ 34,510
Operating leases 222 308 231 1,470 2,231
Total $ 8222 S‘ 3,818 $ 231 $ 24470 $ 36,741

Long-term debt obligations consist of advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank, other
borrowed money and subordinated debentures. The Bank has entered into operating lease
agreements for certain branch properties and equipment. Future minimum rental payments
under the terms of these noncancellable leases, including renewal options, are included in the
operating lease obligations.
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Short-Term Borrowings

The table below includes certain information related to borrowed funds with original maturities
of less than one year. The short-term borrowings are made up of federal funds sold.

2007 2006 2005
Balance at year-end - - -
Weighted average interest rate at year-end - - -
Maximum outstanding at any month-end during the 14,199 8,000 7,400
year
Average amount outstanding 4,699 1,910 843
Weighted average rates during the year 5.52% 5.45% 4.10%
Subordinated Debentures

We established a Trust that issued a $3,000 floating rate trust preferred security as a part of a
private offering in 2002. The Trust can currently redeem the securities any time. The interest is
paid and the interest rate resets quarterly. The interest rate is the New York Prime plus 50 basis
points. The trust preferred security maturity date is December 31, 2032. The issued
subordinated debentures count as Tier 1 capital for regulatory purposes. Debt issuance costs of
$74,000 have been capitalized and are being amortized over the term of the securities. Principal
officers, directors, and their affiliates at year end 2007 and 2006 owned $700 of the $3,000
subordinated debenture. The proceeds from this offering were utilized to increase the Bank’s
capital by $3,000.

In 2005, we established a second Trust that issued $5,000 floating rate obligated mandatory
redeemable securities through a special purpose entity as a part of pool offering. The interest is
paid and the interest rate resets quarterly. The interest rate is the three month LIBOR plus 150
basis points. These securities mature on September 15, 2035; however, the maturity may be
shortened to a date not earlier than September 15, 2010. We issued $5,000 of subordinated
debentures to the Trust, which counts as Tier 1 capital for regulatory purposes. There was no
debt issuance cost in obtaining the subordinated debenture. .The proceeds from the pool
offering were used to increase the Bank’s capital.

In 2007, the Company established a third Trust that issued $15,000 floating rate obligated
mandatory redeemable securities through a special purpose entity as a part of pool offering.
The interest is paid and the interest rate resets quarterly. The interest rates is 7.96% fixed for
five years, thereafter; resets to the 3 month LIBOR plus 300 basis points. These securities mature
on September 27, 2037; however, the maturity may be shortened to a date not earlier than
December 15, 2012. They are presented in liabilities on the balance sheet and $4,390 count as
Tier 1 capital and the remaining $10,610 is considered as Tier II capital for regulatory purposes.
The proceeds from this offering were used to finance a portion of the cash purchase price paid
in connection with the acquisition of First National.
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* Liquidity

Our liquidity, primarily represented by cash and cash equivalents, is a result of our operating,
investing and financing activities. These activities are summarized below for the three years
ended December 31:

2007 2006 2005

Net income $ 2,380 $ 2802 % 2,565
Adjusted to reconcile net income to ) '

net cash from operating activities 1,490 (1,517) 2,063
Net cash from operating activities 3,870 1,285 4,628
Net cash from investing activities (116,771 (100,910} (55,702)
Net cash from financing activities 125,113 88,972 67,560
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 12,212 (10,653) 16,486
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of period 15,073 25,726 9,240
Cash and cash equivalents at end of

period $ 27,285 $ 15073 & 25,726

The adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities consist of
mortgage banking activities and provisions for loan losses. The significant components of
operating activities for 2007 were $82,697 of mortgage loans originated for sales and proceeds
from the sale of mortgage loans of $82,180 which resulted in a gain of $1,212, and provisions for
loan loss of $1,259. The adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating
activities in 2006 consist of mortgage banking activities, gain on sale of land of $390, income
from bank owned life insurance policies of $138 and provisions for loan losses of $1,018. The
significant components of operating activities for 2005 were $25,007 mortgage loans originated
for sales and proceeds from the sale of mortgage loans $25,094 which resulted in gain of $469
and provisions for loan loss of $683.

Significant components of investing activities during 2007 were net loan originations of
$102,243, purchases of securities available for sale of $31,820, offset by the proceeds from the
maturities and redemptions of securities available for sale of $20,453 and sales of $20,289 of
investment securities. Net assets acquired from purchase of First National of $18,460 also
contributed to cash from investing activiies. Significant components of investing activities
during 2006 were net loan originations of $89,704 and purchases of securities available for sale
of $21,173, offset-by the proceeds from the maturities and redemptions of securities available for
sale of $14,062. Significant components of investing activiies during 2005 were net loan
originations of $49,950 and purchases of securities available for sale of $14,428, offset by the
proceeds from the maturities and redemptions of securities available for sale of $11,745.
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Financing activities during 2007 included the issuance of $15,000 in trust preferred securities ,
net deposits inflows of $107,846, proceeds from issuance of common stock of $4,380, and net
proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances of $2,000. Significant financing activities
during 2006 included net deposit inflows of $80,523, proceeds from issuance of common stock
of $3,761, and net proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances of $5,000. Cash flows from
financing activities during 2005 included net deposit inflows of $62,465 and issuance of $5,000
of subordinate debentures.

Liquidity refers to our ability to fund loan demand, meet deposit customers’ withdrawal needs
and provide for operating expenses. As summarized in the statement of cash flows, our main
sources of cash flow are receipts of deposits from our customers and, to a lesser extent,
repayment of loan principal and interest income on loans and securities.

The primary uses of cash are lending to Company’s borrowers and investing in securities and
short-term interest earning assets. In 2007, deposit growth kept pace with loan demand. At
December 31, 2007, we had $18,000 in surety bonds and $9,000 in FHLB letters of credit to
secure public deposits. Surety bonds and FHLB letters of credit were used to keep our security
portfolio available for liquidity purposes. Other potential sources of liquidity include the sale
of securities available for sale from the Bank’s securities portfolio, the sale of loans held for sale,
Federal Home Loan Bank advances, acquisition of national market time deposits or broker time
deposits, the purchase of federal funds, or repurchase agreements.

We consider our liquidity sufficient to meet our outstanding short and long-term needs. We
expect to be able to fund or refinance, on a timely basis, our material commitments and long-
term liabilities.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

At December 31, 2007, we had unfunded loan commitments outstanding of $83,020 and
unfunded letters of credit of $4,409. Because these commitments generally have fixed
expiration dates and many will expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment level
does not necessarily represent future cash requirements. If needed to fund these outstanding
commitments, we have the ability to liquidate federal funds sold or securities available for sale
or on a short-term basis to borrow and purchase federal funds from other financial institutions.
Additionally, we could sell participations in these or other loans to correspondent banks.

Capital Resources

Our total shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2007, was $37,173 compared to $30,657 at
December 31, 2006, and $24,017 at December 31, 2005. The increase in shareholder’s equity in
2007 of $6,516 was the result of net income of $2,380 and the issuance of 5,617 shares of common
stock under the stock option plan of $61, $22 in vesting of restricted stock awards, and a tax
benefit of $12 arising from exercising stock options. Also we had net proceeds of $4,380 from
the issuance of 147,630 shares of common stock from a stock offering beginning in 2006 that
positively impacted shareholders’ equity. The change also included stock-based compensation
expense of $231 and an increase in the fair value of available for sale securities, net of tax, of

(Continued)
68




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

$126. Offsetting these increases was a cash dividend paid to shareholders in the total amount of
$696.

As of December 31, 2007, and December 31, 2006, the most recent regulatory notifications
categorized the Bank and First National as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action. Our total capital to risk-weighted assets ratios for year end 2007 and
2006 were 10.97% and 11.25%. Our Tier 1 to risk weighted assets ratios were 7.87% and 10.14%
at year end 2007 and 2006. Also, our Tier 1 to average assets ratios were 6.76% and 9.45% at
year end 2007 and 2006. The subordinated debentures, issued in 2002, 2005 and 2007 increased
Tier 1 capital, giving the Bank the opportunity to continue its asset growth.

We conducted a stock offering during the fourth quarter of 2006 and the first quarter 2007 in
order to provide us with additional capital. As a result of this offering, we sold 273,090 shares
for total net proceeds of $8,141. The proceeds of the stock offering were used to strengthen our
capital base and position us to continue to help meet our goal of remaining “well capitalized.”

Return on Equity and Assets

Returns on average consolidated assets and average consolidated equity and the ratio of
average equity to average assets and the dividend payout ratio for the periods indicated are as
follows:

2007 2006 2005
Return on average assets 0.47% 0.76% 0.90%
Return on average equity 6.77% 11.14% 11.38%
Average equity to average assets ratio 7.04% 6.84% 7.89%
Dividend payout ratio 29.24% 20.52% -

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Interest Rate Sensitivity

Management uses a gap simulation model that takes cash flows into consideration. These
include mortgage-backed securities, loan prepayments, and expected calls on securities. Non-
maturing balances such as money markets, savings, and NOW accounts have no contractual or
stated maturities. A challenge in the rate risk analysis is to determine the impact of the non-
maturing balances on the net interest margin as the interest rates change. Because these
balances do not “mature” it is difficult to know how they will reprice as rates change. It is
possible to glean some understanding by reviewing our pricing history on these categories
relative to interest rates. Using the interest rate history from the Asset Liability Management
software database spanning up to 20 quarters of data, we can derive the relationship between
interest rates changes and the offering rates themselves. The analysis uses the T-Bill rate as an
indicator of rate changes. The gap analysis uses beta factors to spread balances to reflect
repricing speed. In the gap analysis the model considers deposit rate movements to determine
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what percentage of interest-bearing deposits that is actually repriceable within a year. Our
cumulative one year gap position at December 31, 2007, was -2.5% of total assets. Our policy
states that our one-year cumulative gap should not exceed 15% of total assets.

At year end 2007, $403,264 of $592,753 of interest earning assets will reprice or mature within
one year. Loans maturing or repricing within one year totaled $368,848, or 74.3% of total loans.
We had $18,392 loans maturing or repricing after five years. As of December 31, 2007, we had
$380,431 in time deposits maturing or repricing within one year.

Gap analysis only shows the dollar volume of assets and liabilities that mature or reprice. It
does not provide information on how frequently they will reprice. To more accurately capture
our interest rate risk, we measure the actual effects repricing opportunities have on earnings
through income simulation models such as rate shocks of economic value of equity and rate
shock interest income simulations.

To evaluate the impact of rate change on income, the rate shock simulation of interest income is
the best technique because variables are changed for the various rate conditions. Each category
of earning assets and liabilities interest change is calculated as rates move up and down. In
addition the prepayment speeds and repricing speeds are changed. Rate shock is a method for
stress testing the net interest margin over the next four quarters under several rate change
levels. These levels span four 100bps increments up and down from the current interest rate.
Our policy guideline is that the maximum percentage change for net interest income cannot
exceed plus or minus 10% on 100 bps change and 15% on 200bps change. The following
illustrates the effects on net interest income of shifts in market interest rates from the rate shock
simulation model.

December 31, 2007 _ '
Basis Point Change +200bp +100bp -100bp -200bp

Increase (decrease in net interest income) 7.07%  355% (3.60%) (7.36%)
December 31, 2006 :

Basis Point Change +200bp +100bp -100bp -200bp
Increase (decrease in net interest income) 817%  411% (3.22%) (6.50%)

There are more dollars at risk in income in 2007 if rates go down, compared to2006. There are
fewer dollars at risk in income in the rate shock simulation of interest income when rates were
rising 100 bps compared to 2007 and 2006.
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Qur Economic Value of Equity simulation measures our long-term interest rate risk. The
economic value is the difference between the market value of the assets and the liabilities and,
technically, it is our liquidation. The technique is to apply rate changes and compute the value.
The slope of the change between shock levels is a measure of the volatility of value risk. The
slope is called duration. The greater the slope, the greater the impact or rate change on our long-
term performance. Qur policy guideline is that the maximum percentage change on economic
value of equity cannot exceed plus or minus 10% on 100bp change and 20% on 200bp change.
The following illustrates our equity at risk in the economic value of equity model.

December 31, 2007 ,

Basis Point Change +200bp +100bp -100bp -200bp
Increase (decrease in equity at risk) : 15.63% 6.77% (3.23%) (4.62%)
December 31, 2006

Basis Point Change +200bp +100bp -100bp -200bp
Increase (decrease in equity at risk) (4.00%) (1.90%) 1.60% 280%

There was significant impact on equity at risk in the economic value of equity simulation
between 2007 and 2006. The impact was due to unmatched repricing of assets and liabilities
primarily due to longer term investments of First National.

One of management’s objectives in managing our balance sheet for interest rate sensitivity is to
reduce volatility in the net interest margin by matching, as closely as possible, the timing of the
repricing of its interest rate sensitive assets with interest rate sensitive liabilities.

Impact of Inflation

The consolidated financial statements and related notes presented elsewhere in the report have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.
This requires the measurement of financial position and operating results in terms of historical
dollars without considering the changes in the relative purchasing power of money over time
due to inflation. Unlike most industrial companies, nearly all the assets and liabilities of the
Company are monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates have a greater impact on the
Company’s performance than do the effects of general levels of inflation. Interest rates do not
necessarily move in the same direction or to the same extent as the prices of goods and services.
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MARKET FOR THE COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

No public market exists for the Company's Common Stock, and there can be no assurance that a
public trading market for the Company's Common Stock will develop. As of March 14, 2008
there were 2,116 holders of record of the Company’s Common Stock-and 3,177,733 shares
outstanding, excluding vested options. As of March 14, 2008, there were 194,128 vested options
outstanding to purchase shares of common stock.

While there is no public market for the Company's Common Stock, the most recent trade of the
Company's Common Stock known to the Company occurred on March 14, 2008 at a price of
$30.00 per share. These sales are isolated transactions and, given the small volume of trading in
the Company's Common Stock, may not be indicative of its present value. Below is a table
which sets forth Company’s high and low prices of which the Company is aware for the
relevant quarters during the three fiscal year ended December 31:

2007 High Low

First quarter $30.00 $30.00
Second quarter $30.00 $30.00
Third quarter $30.00 $25.00
Fourth quarter $30.00 ' $25.00
2006 High Low
First quarter $35.00 $20.71
Second quarter $30.00 $27.00
Third quarter $32.50 $29.00
Fourth quarter $30.00 $30.00
2005 High Low
First quarter $19.00 $13.00
Second quarter $24.00 - $19.00
Third quarter $26.00 $22.00
Fourth quarter $29.00 $25.00

For a foreseeable period of time, the principal source of cash revenues to the Company will be
dividends paid by the Bank with respect to its capital stock. There are certain restrictions on the
payment of these dividends imposed by federal banking laws, regulations and authorities.
Further, the dividend policy of the Bank is subject to the discretion of the Board of Directors of
the Bank and will depend upon such factors as future earnings, financial conditions, cash needs,
capital adequacy and general business conditions. The Company paid cash dividends totaling
$696 to shareholders in second quarter of 2007 and $575 to shareholders in the second quarter of
2006. Tennessee law provides that without the approval of the Commissioner of the Tennessee
Department of Financial Institution dividends may be paid by the Bank in an amount equal to
net income in the calendar year the dividend declared plus retained earnings for the prior two
years. Tennessee laws regulating banks require certain charges against and transfers from an
institution's undivided profits account before undivided profits can be made available for the
payment of dividends.
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In the future, the declaration and payment of dividends on the Company's Common Stock will
depend upon the Company's earnings and financial condition, liquidity and capital
requirements, the general economic and regulatory climate, the Company's ability to service
any equity or debt obligations senior to the Common Stock, and other factors deemed relevant
by the Board of Directors. As of December 31, 2007, an aggregate of approximately $5,984 was
available for the payment of dividends in aggregate by the Bank and First National to the
Company under applicable restrictions, without regulatory approval. However, if this amount
was paid we could drop below “well capitalized” under prompt corrective action provisions.
Regulatory authorities could impose administratively stricter limitations on the ability of the
Bank to pay dividends to the Company if such limits were deemed appropriate to preserve
certain capital adequacy requirements.
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Shareholder Return Performance Graph

The following graph compares the percentage change in the unaudited total return on the
Company’s Common Stock against the cumulative total return of the NASDAQ Index and The
Carson Medlin Company’s Independent Bank Index between December 31, 2002 and December
31, 2007. The graph assumes the value of the investment in the Company’s Common Stock and
each index was $100 at December 31, 2002 and that all dividends were reinvested.

COMMUNITY FIRST, INC.
Five Year Performance Index

350 ~
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—— COMMUNITY FIRST, INC. —a— INDEPENDENT BANK INDEX —— NASDAQ INDEX

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
_ COMMUNITY FIRST, INC.
100 132 168 274 318 320
INDEPENDENT BANK
INDEX 100 137 156 167 194 147
NASDAQ INDEX 100 150 163 166 183 198
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT

The following chart gives the name, age and biographical information indicated along with each
person’s position with the Company and that person’s principal occupation during the
preceding five years. Board of Directors members are elected for a term of three years.

Name Age Principal Occupation
Eslick E. Daniel, M.D. 66 Mr. Daniel is Chairman of the Board of Directors. He

is a retired orthopedic surgeon and founder of Mid-
| Tennessee Bone and Joint Clinic, P.C.

Fred C. White 66 Mr. White is currently a local businessman. He was
formerly the co-owner of Smelter Service Corporation.

H. Allen Pressnell, Jr. 62 Mr. Pressnell is President and owner of Columbia
Rock Products and the Chief Executive Officer and
owner of Industrial Contractors Inc.

Roger Witherow 59 Mr. Witherow is President of Roger Witherow &
Associates, Inc., a firm specializing in executive and
employee fringe benefits. Mr. Witherow is a
registered representative and sells securities through
Thoroughbred Financial Services LLC.

Vasant Hari 59°  Mr. Hari is an investor in the hospitality industry.
Dinah C. Vire 56 Ms. Vire manages a physician's office.
Bernard Childress 52 . Mr. Childress is a former educator. He is currently

the Assistant Executive Director of the Tennessee
Secondary School Athletic Association and is active in
community activities through Leadership Maury
County, the YMCA, the Rotary Club and the Maury
Regional Hospital Advisory Board.

Randy Maxwell 51 Mr. Maxwell is Assistant Vice President for
Investments of Tennessee Farmers Mutual Insurance
Company.

Marc R. Lively 44 Mr. Lively is the President and Chief Executive

Officer of the Company and the Bank. Prior to joining
the Bank in 1999, Mr. Lively managed the Tennessee
Corporate Banking Group of TransFinancial Bank in
Nashville.
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Name Age Principal Occupation

Stephen Walker 38 Mr. Walker is the Commercial Property Manager for
Walker Family Limited Partnership and is active in
the Columbia Main Street Corporation.

The following is biographical information regarding those persons who are executive officers of
Company, but are not members of the Board of Directors:

Dianne Scroggins, 48, is Chief Financial Officer of Community First, Inc. and Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer of Community First Bank & Trust. Ms. Scroggins serves on the Asset
Liability Committee and thé Investment Committee. Ms. Scroggins joined the Bank in its
organization phase in 1998. Prior to joining the Bank, Ms. Scroggins served as assistant cashier
from 1994-1997, and Vice President in 1998 with Middle Tennessee Bank. She served in many
areas of Middle Tennessee Bank, including manager of the credit card department, and
investment accountant. She also assisted the Chief Financial Officer in the Finance Department,
and served on the Asset Liability Committee.

Mike Saporito, 57, is Senior Vice President and Chief Operations Officer of Community First
Bank & Trust and has held that position since September 2004. Mr. Saporito has 35 years of
banking experience with several community banks. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Saporito
served as Senior Vice President and Chief Operations Officer of Ohio Legacy Bank in Wooster,
Ohio, from 2003 to 2004. He served as Senior Vice President, Chief Operations Officer and
Chief Information Officer of Commercial and Savings Bank in Millersburg, Ohio, from 2001 to
2003 and Senior Vice President and Senior Operations Officer of The Bank/First Citizens Bank
in Cleveland, Tennessee from 1996 to 2001.

Carl B. Campbell, 59, is Senior Vice President and Chief Credit Officer of Community First
Bank & Trust. 'Mr. Campbell serves on the Bank’s Loan Committee. Prior to joining the Bank in
2000, Mr. Campbell was an Executive Vice President with Mercantile Bank of Kentucky. Mr.
Campbell has held various lending and credit management positions over the past 33 years.

Roger D. Stewart, 44, is Senior Vice President and Senior Loan Officer of Community First Bank
& Trust. Prior to joining the Bank in May of 2005, Mr. Stewart served as Vice President and
Commercial Team Leader for the Tennessee Community Banking Group for US. Bank, N.A.
from November 2000 until May 2005. Mr. Stewart has held various commercial lending
positions over the past 18 years.
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